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AmRest Holdlnfl N.V. 

1. COMPANY PROFILE 

1.1. Key Services Provided by thd Group 

KFC restaurants in P o l d ,  the Czech Republic 

int restaurants in Poland and Rodeo Drive restmrmts 
Poland and Hungary. Moreover, h c e  the first half 

in Poland and the Cztc awe the lee%and outlets form integral parts of 
selected KFC and Pizza in Poland, starting from 2006 AmRest does not 

2007, W e s t  plans to open the first Burger King 
, Freshpoint, Rodeo Drive and Burger Khg, the 

Company will diversify its service6 asld guarantee customer satisfaction with its broad range 
of products. 

take-away, drive-through and home delivery, 
tasty fopd at oompebitive prices, while ensuring qpdity 

includes the propiaary items that am prep&, from 
CUkB -dads of KFC and Pizza Hut chain$ (and 

The Company's g a l  is to 
service. The mc$t 

Bwga King in the &%we), as we0 88 on the basis of proprietary concepts (FreshPo& and 
RodGa Drive). I 

The KFC and Pizza Hut brands 
King restaurants will also be 
Burger King Empe  OmbH. F 
which means &at the gales gem 

7 franchised to M e s t  by Ywn! Brands Inc. The Burger 
the basis of a franchise agrement concluded with 

int and Rodco Mve are propriew 
those lv$tamt3 are not subject to 

I 
1 

a) KIFC and Pia& Hut 
KEC is a quick service re 

seasonal sal&, biscuits and 
cold beverages Chicken 
b d e d  in store on a d&l 

y coolred 60121, and hot and 
is fhshly marinated d 1 

exmum the highst quality and 

chain opcratora fn Central ruld Eastern Europe. 

The KFC chain operated b 
chicken meals but also fie& 
This trend is continued by in- 
The KFC's 2Q0 

ng new customers. 

on the stmqhning of th awareness of the hi@ 
from hshiy Med pieces of chicken as well as other 

8 resd of hpbmentation of this strategy the 
with innovative flavour combinations subh as 
M e r  Asikos. The new P-te salad w8Q also 
ucts are prepared with an addition of fksh 

menu was expanded 
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In 2006, all KFC 
customer’s order. 
nutritional value of the meals 

to hshly ground bean coffee always mE11116 to 
on the providing additional information on the 

Pizza Hut is one of the largest 
wide mge of d o w  d i s h  in 
Hut o f k  i d u & s  typical for 

and hot drinks. 

Central and Eastern Europe, offeting a 
service. The Pizza 

thixl-w,ddh‘ 
I t a l i a n p a s t s s a n d l ~ ,  

In 2006 Pizza Hut continued the rqaliaition of its product strategy based on “Pizza - Pata - 
Salad”. Including the a b  P h  Hut focused on offtring the diversity 
redking the assumption ore”. According to the strategy the P& Hut 
menu was extended b LasacpMI, wide offer of pastas, exotic offer of 

y the Pizza Hut ofbr has beem extended €& the 
addition of “big tt o b  cold drinks plus by the addition of freshly s q M  
juices (orangeand wide seiection of Italian wines. 

Pizza Hut is continuously 
w m  The cullcnt actio 

new line of a dozen or so 
the customers “the joumay” to 
c m m  will have a chance 
combining the selected pasta 

for new ideas offering the ‘bste adventure” d ~ l  its 
the e m -  the wider choice artd inirnilablc w. 

p h  (“me Whole World in Pip;a Hut“) win Wtt 
Cuisines &om all Lvound the world. Additionally the 

dHbreat taste cmnpositions by the possibility of 
urite sauce (“Pasta Festival”). 

b) FreshPoint and Rodeo Drive 

Despite acountering greater d 
the development of its new 
evaluation of both projects will 
(10 Freshpoint restaumts and 5 
that bth brands 
76% of the customers of F 

brands: Freshpoint and Rodeo Drive. The 1 1 1  

mtammts). However, we can already condude 

lare their intention to visit one of the 

FreshPoint, AmRest’s new 
operations in Uarch 2006. 
o p e d  to tiate - all of ttr 
restaurants me designed fo 
lifestyles want to eat well. 
out. The FreWoint o 
sauces. All menu items am s 

in store guarantees the fieshes 
sandwiches is frmh because it is balrtd on pramises. 

fiesher and healthier option of eating 

nvenimt f m  to eat in or take out. The natural 

FTeshpioint sandwiches. The bread used to prepare 
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AmRest Hokllnp N.V. 

In H2 2006, the menu boards at he FreshPoint restaurants were re-designed. At the same 
time, the Company developed a design and outdoor and indoor signage standard for 
the restaurants. Also in H2 2 new product category was introduced - low-cost 
sandwiches for the customers for value-fbr-money. In March 2007, a premium 
offering was launched - s on new type of bread, 2O-cm ciabatta with 
d o w e r  seeds. I 
Sandwich bars are to be the next step in the development of the catering industry in Poland, 
which is to be driven by the s of healthy eating in Poland. The additional 
factors determining the growth in Poland hc lwk higher professional activity of 
women, longer working hours, number of shopping centres with an extensive catering 
offering and an increasing 

The first Rodeo Drive (American bar & orill) restaurant was opened in April 2006. Rodeo 
Drive, AtnRest’s second new co t, is a casual dining restaurant serving meals based 
mostly on grilled meat and a wide e gc of beverages. Rodeo Drive restaurants are traditional 
Texas saloons. I 
Rodeo Drive is a suitable place for a lunch, business meeting or 

restaurants draws on the 
American tradition - 
stone wall features 
wheels. A barbecue 
emphases the character of the place. 

an evening beer party. The 
tables, ceiling beams, 

with a ranch, such as hats, d e s  and wagon 
is a distinctive feature of the restaurants which 

Rodeo Drive restauran 
Drive’s house special i 
ribs, served with BBQ 

can food - the meals for real cowboys. Rodeo . Another very popular dish is masted 

7 
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The restaurants are situated in adactive locations and may serve 150-250 customers at a 
time. At present, AmRest operates two Rodeo Drive restaurants, one in Wroclaw, Poland, and 
one in Brno, the Czech Republic. In 42 2007, AmRest plans to open another Rodeo Drive 
restaurant in Nowy h i a t  in Warsaw, 

c) Hungarian Market 

Starting from 4 3  2006, the 
the Hungarian mstaurants 
restaurants and 6 KFC 
time of the acquisition, 

financial statement of the AmRest h u p  includes 
June 2006. At present, there am 12 Pipa Hut 

all o€which rue operated by M e s t .  At the 
4 KFC r e s t a ~ t s  o p e d  in Hungmy. 

I 

Our Hungarian bushes 
ArnRest’s systems and 
DOS+ internal manage 
training materials for 

ption and compliance with 
an restaurants implemented the 
System+) and standardised the 

8 



ArnRest Holdings N.V. 

Following id@ 
and administrative 
of the employees’ 
CQre vFdue% 

of the restaurant &, management 
developed to achieve the optimal utilipation 

quickly adopted AmRest’s work c u l m  and 

The main objective of all 
Andtest’s opinion, the KF 
&et. At the same time 
(menu, prices, btc.), which 
on the Hungdm market. 

es is to lay foundation for the funue growth. In 
has a grater growth potentid on the Hungarian 

Pizza Hut on the market 
development of the brand 

d) Burger King 

At the beginning of March 2007, 
concluded 8 devel 
andoperate 
agreemeat d the g 
to h mcluded in respec 
Burger King brand to the portfolio iepresentS AmRest entrence into the largest QSR segment. 

and Burger King Europe GmbH 
der which the Company is to open 
in Poland. The details of the 
nclitions for b h i s e  agreements 

sfmuants are described in App 

Bwgm King is the se 
are over 11 thousand 
of approx. 90% of them 
businesses with many years of 

in the world. Cmntly, there 
es. The owners and mamgers 

ecs, many of whom are the owners of family 

The most populat. Burger King’s p duct is the WHOPPER@ sandwich which was introduced 
in 1957. For many years the WH PPER@ sandwich has been the favourite meal of many 
customers and me of the most reco t ‘sed sandwiches in the world. 

1.2. Revenue Structure 

2006 was another year of growth in AmRest’s sales revenue, which increased by 25.9% 
(PLN 629m in 2006 relative to 
2006 was 13.2%. The high 
sales of the existing 
Hungary. Starting 

Soom in 2005). To compare, CAGR for sales in 2002- 
d e s  was atttibutable mainly to the steadily growing 
as tho d e s  generated by the restaurant chain in 

reported by the Hungarian restaurants has been 
the Hungarian restaurants for 4 3  and 44 2006 included in the 

amounted to PLN 21 Am. 

The majority of the 
segment (KFC and F 
2006 (relative to 78.9% in 
26.3%. Casual Dining, the 
Rodeo Drive 
21.1% in200 mounted to 24.3%. 

s revenue is generated in the Quick Service Restaurants 
h accounted for 79.1 % of the Company’s total revenue in 

segment’s sales dynamic amontad to 
business, comprising Pizza Hut and 

% of the Company’s total revenue (relative to 

9 
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Table: AmRRst's sales stnrcftve by segment 
I 

Q4 2006, imtrihied 3.4% of 

In 2006, the sales 
23.w~ in the case 

nestrvurants mounted to 21.0%, compared with . Tbe rasgaurarts opamting in Poland contri uted 
&e k h  m d  Hungaria restwants contri & uted 

T a b :  Asdkst's sales stmctum by kuntzy 

3.4% 0 0.wo 

T-I lWd% mgro 100.8.h 
I I 

, 
1 

1.3. Customers 

M e s t ' s  products are o f f 4  to allarge n u m b  of individual customers through a chain of 
restaurants loc&d in Poland, CzQlch RquWie sad Hungary, mainly in cities or in their 
immediate vicinity. 

The target market for KFC in Po 
available n a t i d  statistics, &is 
Republic's pqdatioa. 
olds, and 29% ofthem 

seoondary-.leve~ edrrcation, 

is 15-39 year olds. Based on the 
Poland's and 44% of the Czech 

54. Appmximitcly 41% (43% according to 
in the Czeoh Republic oompletd at least 

(61 3% according to the 2004 research) live in dities 

10 
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(78% according to the 2004 research) are 15-39 

the 2004 research) live in cities with a popthation 

ut in Poland is 15-39 year olds. Based on the latest 
Cornpaisa 31% of the population (31% according to 
cwtorma in Poland (75% according to the'2004 
years, 73% (71% aecordhg to the 2004 res&arch) 
on and 60% (63% according to the 2004 reqwch) 

out by SMO/KRC TGI in Poland and by 

m m h )  O f  them COmplefRd at l m t  secomdary- 

in excess of20,000. 

The principal target market for 
available national statistics, th;is 
the 2004 march). 75% of 
research) am 8ged be- 

live in cities with a 

1.4. Sappliers 

Adtest's strategy for food and 
of strvice, as well as co 

8; purchases assumes ensuring quality and high level 
of the first two objectives; The 

many cases hold other 

s key suppliers, product quality assessment is routinely 
accordance with 

ent both in its unprocessed 
th% restauraat's custoniers. 

by Adtest be identified, the producer is 
011 the nrrture of the shortcoming in the 

M s  such as chicken meat, their 

narrowly defined rqui 
form and in the fm 
Should any devisltions 
obligated to take appr 
foodstuff quality. Cow 
quality is monitored on 

system in place. \ 

One of the requirements which 
tracking from an mprocesd 
in this case a restmmt and its 

need to satis& is a stamless system of product 
finished product delivered to end CUS~OIW - 

I 
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2006, AmRest's quality m&ol 

of compliance with A d d s  
market and pvhose duties will inchde tnfimknent 

by the Czech supplkrs. 

toring pnoce$ures relating to key 
onaltys the pqaration of semi- 

stmml id  with the aim of replacing 

An efficient didbutio 

Poland and EST in the 
distdbutirn audits are 
vtgeterMes and chilled chic 

The year 2006 was the fifth 

in the restaurant industry. The bulk of 
distribution centres including McLane in 

a view to ens\aing adqustc service qtiality, 

arc transpQtrbed in the suppliers' vehicles - well- 
. F f d  fimwffb like p n - m  

monitoring devices. 

I 

efftwt of c u a d M e  price 
and July of2006. 

In 2006, SCM Sp z 0.0. corn1 
of Russia, Furthannore, it began 
Russia's largest chidm pmm 
underway with customers h m  Po 

One of the priority objjecti 
recent acquisition of the 
procwmcnt bakw in Hzursary 
the Czech Republic. 

must currently be implemented in connection with the 
resttturmt~ is the establishment of an effective 

intugdon with thc prmtmnmt system in Poland and 

12 
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Adtest’s key supplier is McLanq. It supplies the Polish restaurants with packaging and all 
food products excluding which is supplied directly by producers, and 

h March 2006, after comparing service pices 
within Ym!’s European was made to extend the agreement with h@me 
for another WQ y m ,  (far )detailed information alee Current keport 
No. 8/2006 dated the conclusioa of annex bo the 

vegetables (in the case of some 

aforementioned agreement). 

AmRest continues 
p u p  pfthe C a m p y ’  
company, one of the 
cooperation with those 
Divisions, a mmber o 
contributed to the sales growth 

10 largest suppliers of Pizza Hut aE)d KFC restaurants in Poland: 
McLane (general supplier) 
Drobimex - chicken 
Konspol - chicken 
Pepsi Cola - cald beverages 
Jhtmaen -rolls 

opment strategy - in 2006, the 
was expanded to include an English 

Id. Thanks to the 
New Product Development 

, which significantly 
y the MFC and Pizza Hut restaurants. 

I 

OSM Saczurowa - mozzarella 
Stoever - French fries 
Bona Agra - vegetables 
Huhtamaki - packaging 
Lactalis - momella, ementaler 

10 largest Swppiiers in the Czech Republic: 
Agrop~l Food - chieken 
E.S.T. (distributor) 
Beskyd Frycovice - vegetables and sauces 

Pepsi Cola - cold beverages 
Stoever - French flies 
Setuza - shortening 
Huhtamaki - packaging 
Run - cum cobs 
McCormick - spice and marinate 
Bohemik - ice-cream and dessert 

I 
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Only in the case of McLane the 
revenue. SuppHes by each 
less than 10% of the sales revenue. 

of suppjies exceeds 10% of the Company’s total sales 
largest suppliers (presented above) ac-count for 

14 
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2. COMPANY'S S-oLDEw 

AmRcst Holdings N.V. 

the Compy, as at the date of filing the annual 
=shipWdem mbmitted in€&matian on hlding 
SF) at I d  5% of the total vote at the General 
N.V. 

I 

1; 1,315,093( 9.744 1,315,094 9.744 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

3. COMPANY’S MANAGEMEN“lr AND SUPERVISORY STAFF. STOCK OPTION PLAN 

3.1. Composition of the Company’s Management and Supervisory Boards 

During the last financial year, thm were no changes in the rules governing appointment and 
removal from office of.qmbers bf the management staff or the powers of the management 
staff. 

l a) Management Board 

Composition ofthe AmRest’s M*anent Board is as follows: 
Hemy McaOvenn and 
Wojciech bhczyhslri 

b) Supervisory Board 

3.2. Remuneration of the Mamgem+t and S u m r y  Staff 

In 2006, each member of the s+prvisory staff of M e s t  received remuneration of 
PLN 20,000. 

The total remuneration paid to Hew Mcifovern for 2006 amounted to PLN 1,396 thousand. 
The total remuneration paid to vojciech Mrocwki  for 2006 amounted to PLN570 
thousand. 

1 8 1  1 1 !; 

Henry McGovern and Wojciech 
below sets forth changes in the 
management and supervisory 

participate in the Stock Option Plan. The table 
AmRest stock options held by the Company’s 
presented in accordance with the informadon 

available to the Company. 

16 
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As at Dceemk 31st 
Stock Option Plan, o 
amounted to PLN 5 

As at Decemktr 3 1 ~ t  2006 
the §tQ& option P h ,  of 
value mmted to PLN 70 

For more i&&on on the 
stawmm. 

33. Otkr lnfarma 

1 10,OOO units (options) under the 
l%amber 3 1st 2006, their value 

MCI a totttl of 7,0.00 units (options) d e r  
vested, As at December 31st 2W, ,  their 

Option Plan see Note 22 to the oonsolidated financial 

The Management Board of 
between the Comprrny and 
any compemation in the 

that &me am IM agreabtnts 
sta$ which would provide for 

the s m 1 d i n g  in A4etrOwlitan Properties 
75 shares in AmRest (RB 27/206 datcd July 18* 

Intematiooal Investments, 
of AmRmt @lease also see Note 32 td the 

bels ofthe lKwM@mw and Supervisory 
r h s  or interests ib the 

r 

3.4. Control over Stock Option P4ms 
Until April 27th 2005, 
(“Stock Option Plan 1”) under 
value was based on a multiple o 
for in the Plan rules. 
admission of Amasst 
Exchange, the Company was o 
participation units as at the &e of 
The Performance Participation PI 
units issued under the Plan, 
Company. The obligations re1 
vested and to unsettled units Wtai 

Performance Participation Plan in place 
gible employees received participation units whose 
for the fbwwial year, adjusted for factors provided 

the Plan rules, upon completion of the process of 
V. shrues to public tmding on tbe Warsaw Stock 

to pay its employees the value of the vested 
ion of its s h  to public trading. 

tamha?& as of April 27th 2005. Some participation 
vested as at April 27th 2005, were settled by the 
rest of the issued participation units which have not 

April 27th 2005 were assumed by ARC, 
in &e future. a Company shareholder, and will 

17 
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4. ORGANIZATION OF THE GROUP 

4.1. Composition of the Group 

The current composition of the 
annual financial statements as at 
changes in the Group’s cornpadtioh in the period are described below. 

i 
On February 3rd 2006, Amen 
loO/o of shares in SCM Sp. z 0. 

American Restauraylts Sp. z o 
terms of deliveries to 
agreements. For &hi 

est Group is prwnted in Note l a  to the consolidated 
d for m l v e  moBths ended December 31s 2006. The T 

Sp. z o.o., a subsidiary of AmRest, acquired 
increasing its holding to 45%. SCM provides 

tdiation and negotiation services with regard to 
g negotbtion of terms and conditions of distribution 

on see Note 4 and Note 31. 
I 

On June 3osh 2006, Amerim 
System, KEt. of Budapest from 
Ssrares in Kentucky Sysb 
four KFC restaurants in 
American Restaurants, Kft. Fo 
Note 4. 

On October 25th 

s Sp. z 0.0. acquired 100% of s h e s  in Kenfucky 
pem FrwAise Group, Ltd. Upon acquiring all 

became the owner of thhteen Pizza Hut restaurantti and 
In September, K m q  System, Kft. was rerwned 
led information on the transaction see Appendix 3 and 

. ‘ I  
Sp. z 0.0. concluded an agreement prodding 
2006 Sp. z 0.0. The acquired company is a 

For detailed information on the transaction 
for the acquisition of 
lessee of a property at 
see Appendix 2 and Note 4. 

The Group kas offices in Wroclaw, Poland, and operates restaurants in Poland, the Czech 
Republic and Hungary. 

4.2. Employment 

In the period 2004-2006, the employment in the Group was as follows (as at year end): 

Table: Employment at AmRest (200112006) 

Year 2006 2005 2004 

Restaurants 6,659 5,609 4,764 

Administration 179 112 130 

Total 6,838 5,721 4,894 
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m a m g m t  system of the Company wab the 
position. The position was filled by Mr Twek 

2006. Formdy, duritig 10 yeaft of his wbrlr at 
Pizza Hut h W ’ s  Brad M k t  ratkd held a nupbcr 

y m  he hhs babunploycd at Yum!, where he was in 

creation of a new 

charge of v*w Euwpaan 

In connection with the Company 

20 
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5. COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STANDING AND ASSETS 

AmRest Holdings N.V. 

5.1. Assessment of the Companyb Performance and the Balance Sheet Structure 

Table: Financial highlights of AI&& (for 2004-2006) 

241 18 

1.3% 

13,538 

2.9% 

1 1,770 

I 2.5% 

157,864 123,090 17,540 

28% 31% 92% 

320,989 288,941 214,366 

13% 9% 5% 

Equity 

Return on equity (ROE) 

Balance-sheet total 

&turn on assets (ROA) 

D&rlitiom: 
- 
- 
- 
- Net margin: net profit to sales revenue; , 
- 
- 

I 

EBlDTA margin: EBlTDA (earnings bef&e interest, tax, akpreciation and amorthation) to sales revenue; 
Opemting margin: operatigprofit ta sa& revenue; 
Pre-tar margin: pre-tar profit to sales y n u e ;  

Return on equity (ROE): netprojt to avemge equitv; 
Return on assets (ROA): net profit to averbge assets, 

21 
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Table: Liquidity in 2004-2006 

Cash rutio: cash d egsh cbp at tk end of the period: 

&e number qfahys in the period: 

recetvu&tus to sclcs revenue.  VIES the nutnber cf&s in the period; Average collection perid (d-): 
average concrcilonpariod; 

revenue, tsnreJ the number of in the period; 

Capk cmybrsion ratio: d@mme batwro rating cycle d rradr -Mer 

22 
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In 2006, Adtest generated sal LN 629,326 thorrsand, up by 25.9% on the 2005 figure. 
When corn- with 2005 ggmwth d m c s  was bigbkr in tbR second Wf of 
the pear, when it s m ~ ~ ~ t & d  sales iriaww was niainly attributable to the s h y  

d e s  mvaue gmratud b‘ the 
* - t w i r l  has twen i n c d L  in 
the Oroup’s results since Q totalled PLN 2 1 . 4 ~  

23 
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The 2006 d e s  were positive by an approximately 1.8% appreciatiofi of the Chech 
with 2005. 

ArnRest has seen a steady 
slwly tiiern sales, with the 

of its operating margin. In 2006, costs grew mrc 
in gross p f i t  margin to 13.6% compared with 

13.0"h in 2005. 

sale3 - 0cc-y and otber expenses, On the uther hand, the financial results were 

s principally cunmcted with remuneration and benefits 

30,530 thcmsmd (4.9% of sales). 

In 2006, operating profit am0 
figwe, while 2006 EBITDA 
2 O ( M I h 2 o 0 6 3 e ~  

2006 improved opemthg margin 
well as in g m d  mi admid 
gain on the disposal of fixed 

PLN 44,495 thousand, up by 91 .O% mqxired to 2005 
to PLN91,205 thousand, up by 45.1% compared to 

7.1% (campred to 4.7% in 2005), while 
to 12.6% in 2005). The main driver of the 

in restmant expefises (by 0.6 pp), as 
pp). Another fkvourable fractor was the 

In 2006, the net profit amounted to tLN 38,583 thousand and increased by 74.8% compared 
h m  4.4% to 6.1%. The improvement in the net p f i t  

was also driven by 2006. A decrease in the financial 
costs recordad in 2 e to the lower inttrest expense, while the increase in 
fbncial incchme do foreign exchange gains relating 

of its related parties (PLN3,68% 
ribed in saction 5 of the Notes to 

the Q2 2006 Report. 

24 



I 

AmRest Holdings N.V. 

nerd rortios w m  close to the respective 2005 figures and 
rely. The slight dewease in cash and cash equivalcntip and 
Wad tb atsh ratid, which dropped to 0.32 (compctdad to 

)ten &rowing steadily. It inmastd fi.am PLN 123,090 
LN 157,864 tbousaod as at the end of 2006. The debt to 
105 ta 1.0 in 2006. The debt ratio went down from 0.57 to 

25 
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5.2. Loans and Borrowings Contrqctd within the Group 

Detailed information on the load and borrowings is presented in Note 21 to the financial 
statements. 

The table below presents all the lorfns granted to related parties: 

a. Am1 :st Holdings N.V. 
I PLN '000 

I I I 

American Reswrrants s.r.0. ICZK I 22,235 I 23,855 
* b.mrsbrcrdat ha d-exhange rate 
NBP m Lkc 31 2006 
**plus htarrslcharpdunrtlLkc31aood 

by the 

b. A m C r i ~ a n  Restaurants sp. z 0.0. 

I I 1 PLN 'OOO 1 

Y 

Qn October 3Qth 2006, 
AxalRcst HoUrigs N.V., 
ABN AhaRo Bank N.V 

As at Daoemk 31st 
Group: 
a)ABNAmroBank 
b)ABNAnnroBmurk 
c) ABN Amro Bank 
d) Bank BPH 

On the 22"d of December 2006 
S.A., seated in Warsaw, has 
effectiveness of &e cash 
of the Agreement are inc 

of April 4th 2005 between 
Rcstamum Sp. z o.o., Amerimn Rcstwmm s.r.0. and 

ling Agreement with ABN AMRO Bank (Poland) 
Tbe aim of the Agreement is to increase the 

c8 of the AmRest Gtoup. The details 
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The other element of the Group quidity management is investing the short-tern finiencial 
slapPus in the high-liquid and we 1 rated financial instruments. In November 2006 W e s t  
purchased the Toyota Bank Polan p S.A. certificates of deposit. This investment is d d b e d  
in Note 18. 

5.3. Key Domestic and Foreign J#nystme& 

The table below presents acquisiti~ns of non-current assets in 2006 and comparable data for 
2005. 

Table: Acquisitions of non-current msets by AmRest Holdings N.V. (2006-2005) 

Capital expndiisure incurred by st is primarily connected with opening new restaurants, 
ent of assets in tbe existing restaurants. Another item of 
the acquisition of 100% of shares in Kentucky Sybtem, 

depeds pharily on tbe n u m b  and type of the m. The Company’s cap 
newly-opened restaurants. 
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PkZrIWinHungary 1 I 1 2  I o  I O  I 

Itl2006, M e s t  expanded its 
Rodco Driva, and entered a new 

two new bmds, Le. FrwimPoi@ and 

the Czech Republic 
number of Pizza 

In the years to come the M 

3 KFC rem- 
In 2006, the investments wefe 

In 2006, AmRcst’s capital 

B o d  intends k, open several dozens rr;staurarlts each 

y financed with cash provided by operations. 
Wtallud PLN 7733 1 thousand, and comprised: 

Acquisitions of property, lant and equipment of PLN 54,445 thousand, aad of 
intangible assets of PLpd 1, 1 thousand. P I 

1 
I 
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5.4. Structure of Key Equity Invbtmenta 

As at December 31st 2006, equity investments of AmRest amounted to 
PLN 1,221 busand, including 923 thousand worth of shares in Worldwide 
Communication Services LLC and PLN 298 thowand worth of sham in 
SCM Sp. z 0.0. 

5.5. Major Events With II SignM#rnt Impact on the Company’s Operations and 
Financial Results 1 

a) In J m q  2006, AmRest reported that Amrest Ukraina t.0.w. of Kiev, Ukraine, was 
registered. AmRest holds 100% of shares in this company through its subsidiary, American 
Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. The com$any’s share capital amounts to UAH 252,500. Amrest 
Ukraina taw.  was incorporated in order to supenhe investment projects and operate 

development of the restaurant busiibess on the Ukrainian market. This decision was based on 
AmRest’s experience with the ula(ainian operations conducted since the beginning of 2006. 
AmRest plans to keep its ukrairlian company. AmRest believes in the potential af the 
restaurant market in Ukraine; ho*ver, whether this potential can be tapped on depends on 
stabilisation on the real property *ket and further market reforms. AmRest is convinced 
that within a few years stabilisadpn on the real property market and the overall market 
situation will create a more f a v o q l e  environment for development in this country. 

b) In midMarch 2006, the first FqeshPoint restaurant was opened in Warsaw. Currently, 5 
FreshPoint restaurants are in operation (all situated in Warsaw). 

c) On March 23rd 2006, an Annex 10 the Distribution Agreement of April 2nd 2003 between 
AmRest and McLane Polska Sp. z 0.0. of Blonie was signed. For detailed terms of the Annex 
see Appendix 1. 

restaurants in Ukraine. In Oct i r 2006, AmRest reported on its decision to defer 

d) In April 2006, the first Rodeo Drive (American Bar & Grill) restaurant was opened in 
Wroclaw. Cunently, the Company h a t e s  2 Rodeo Drive restaurants (another one is located 
in Bmo, Czech Republic). 

e) April 1st 2006 was the eff’ti 
received frm the shmhidtr, 

f) The Annual h n e r  
22nd 2006. The only 

s N.V. was held on May 
vote at the Meeting was 

of tho €inaxwid for the financial year 
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0) On the 27' of March 2007 
subsidivies of 

99.8% of Amlktt CoaeGe 
(0.2% of equity). The 
the new cmqhmy m c m t E l  to 
relaaioaa to tl#: sipling of 
approvals of the Polish CQ 

Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. and Doris 2006 Sp. z o.o., the 
offee sp. t 0.0. 

American Restwmnts Sp. which COlljptiMe 
p. 2 0.0. SuWW 1 ;*sham 

to PLN 100. The total equity of 
sip. z 0.0. has been establis&i in 

5.6. Other Factors and Q@aordinmy Events with a Material Impact on the Group's 
Performance 

a) Four cases brought against IFFP'by DOMONT Stefan Pastryk Anna Pastryk spc5llca jawna 
are pending More the Regional ourt of Warsaw, XVI Commercial Division. The claims 
concern the payment of amounts d t under notes issued by IFFP to DOMONT Stefan Pastryk 
Anna Pastryk sp6llc.a #wna for a total amount of PLN 
4,030,000. DOMONT's claims cohcern the payment for construction works that had been 
performtd by DOMONT for IFFPjbchm November 2Q00, Le. before American Rcsta@xtntts 
Sp. z 0.0. acquired shares in IFFP. lAmrding to the Management Board of IFFP, the claims 
are groundless, as they are not j w e d  by the balance of settlements between IFFP and 
DOMONT. According to the doc@ents disclosed, DOMONT d m s  not have the right to 
claim the payment of the disputed Bmount. The Court has not commenced examination of the 
facts of the case yet. 

' 

It should be noted that IFFP does not cany out operating activities and is not an entity 
material for the operations of the Company and its Group. 

b) The financial results of Am&t's Czech operations translated into the zloty are affected by 
changes in the currency exchange qtes used for currency translations. The appreciation of the 
Czech crown against the Polish do in 2006 had a positive effect on the results of the Czech 
operations disclosed in the fim f i d  statements. As at the end of 2006 the CZKEPLN 
exchange rate was higher by 4.8%~compared with the end of 2005, while the 2006 average 
exchange rate increased by 1.8% oathe 2005 average rate. 

7 : "1 

5.7. Investment Plans and Their Reallieation Assessment. 

The AmRest Group goal is a fiuthrer development of its core brands, KFC and Pipla Hut, 
through the opening the new re&aurants and increasing the sales of already existing 
restaurants; development of the neb brands - FreshPoint, Rodeo Drive, Burger King and 
Starlrucks - and the regional expwion throw the entering the new markets of Central and 
Eastem Europe. 

Additionally the Company will continue the modernization program with regards to the 
selected restaurants at the level o f p x i r n m  2.5% of the Company's 2007 planned sales 
revenues. The material part of the renovation budget is dedicated to the modernization actions 
in Hungary. 
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The existing AmRest restaurant cfmn will be developed principally by opening in 2007 in 
total a dozen or so new P h  Hut d KPC restaurants in Poland and the Czech Republic and 
several new resthlurants in Hung a t r  The cost of opening a new Pizza Hut or KFC resqiurant 
ranges from PLN 1.6m to PLN 2.c. depending on the location and restaurant type. 

A further development of 
successful outcome of b 

Drive and FreshPokt restaurants is contingent on the 
ects. During the brand testing phase, the Company 

restamma and 5 Rodeo Drive restaurants. On 
Drive re;staurant ranges f k n  PLN 3 . b  to PLN 

, while the average cost oflaurtching a Freshpoint 

GmbH, m e s t  intends to develap the 
planned to open up in the second quarter 
average cost of opening the new Eurgw 

5.0m, dqsnding an 

Under an agreement 

As part of its expansion in the reg on, AmRest also plans to launch a chain of restaurants in 
Bulgaria The Company plans to o k  the first KFC xestaurants on this market by the end of 
2007. 

It should be added that the plan oflopening new restaurants will be adjusted on an on-eoing 
basis to reflect prevailing market honditions and the possibilities of finding new attractive 
locations in speeific countries. 

The substantial part 1 be spent on the new IT 
systems tirid integration o s. The main projects will include the 
introduction of the new se Resource Planning system 
(ERP) and Busmess Intell I). The new IT systems will be implemented to 
standarize the systems in to &eve better business proms automation. 
These chanses will the AmR& h u p  and will improve 
the control and monitoring of its on and improvement ofthe IT systems 
will be a plaffom for the finther 

The Management Board predicts/that the long-term growth will be financed with the 
Company’s own funds and 
will be financed mainly 

external financing. The investments planned for 2007 
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6. AMREST HOLDINGS N.V.: O F L O O K  FOR 2007 
I - ‘  

6.1. Internal and Eawnsl Factom &terM to the Development of the Company’s Business in 
2007 

In the opinion of the Company’d Management Board, the following factors will have a 
material bearing on the Compy’sldevelopmnt arid performance in the fbture: 
- a)Externalfacton: 
- competitiveness in terms of pri s, service and food quality, as well as location; 
- demographic changes, tendenc s concerning the number and profile of the restaurants’ 

customers as well as the num and location of the competition’s restaurants; 
- amendments to laws and mgul tions, b t i y  affecring the functioning of the restaurants 

changes in the occupancy costs (lease of property) and related costs; 

changes in prices of the ingredients used in preparing meals and changes in prices of 
packaging materials; - ohanges in the overall eGonomiq conditions in Poland, the Czech Republic and Hungary as 
well as consumers’ confidence,lthe level of disposable incomes and individual spending 
patterns. 

recruiting and training employpes needed to develop the existing and new restaurant 
chains; 
acquiring attractive locations; 

I 

and their empioyees; i 
b) Intend €&&om: 
- 

I 

- success in launching new and new products; 
- developing an integrated 

6.2. Key Risks and Threats to the ompany 

The Management Board of 
system and intend control s 
faciiitate the identifi 
accomplishment of M e s t ’ s  1 
systems does not fully el 
Management Board 
exposed to. Also, the 
This section presents 
and improves its risk 

i s  responsible for maintaining the risk management 
well as for reviewing their efficiency. These systems 

€=tors which could compromise the 
Nonetheless, the application of the 
fraud or legal infringements. The 

d y s i s  and rating of risk factors the Company is 
reviewed the Company’s control systems for 2006. 

factors and thrests. AmRest reviews 
1 system on an on-going basis. 

F 

, 
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4 

a) Factors Outside of the Camp y’s Control 

“here arc a number of 
development strategy, based o 
to identify and secure suitable 
ability to obtain the required 
restaurants. 1 

9 
of the Compy’s control which afTect AmRest’s 
g new restaurants. These factors include: the ability 
loWons which the Company is &le to acquire, the 

sations in due time, and possible delays in launching new 

b) Dependence on the Franchisot 
1 

AmRest Illanages KFC, Pizza 

by the l i m b h s  and greciifi 

Burger King restaurants as a hchisee.  Therefore, 
on with AmRest’s operations are determined 

is tea years. ArnRest has an option to extend the term 
it complies with the terms and conditions a€ the 

, including the requirement to pay an extension fee. 
abovmentiod conditions, there can be no assurance 

ired a givcn fhchise agreement is prolonged for 
izza Hut rest8snants, the initial term commenaed in 

the initial term will com~ence on the openiag of 

imposed by the fhmhisor and depend on its approvd. 

agreements and other 
Notwithstanding the ful 

2000, while for the Burg 
the first restaurant under 

c) Lack of Exclusivity Rights 

The fixinchhe agreements do de W e s t  with any exclusivity rights in agiven 
territory, protection or any other rn the territory, region or market where the AnnRest 
restaurants operate. However, in entrance of an operator which could succesfully 
compete with the m e s t  Group (with respiect to the brands currently op ra td  by 
the Company) is relatively d i k e $  considering the Company’s operational scale (including 
its broad distribution network). I 

d) Laase Agreements and Their 

of lease agreements are 
beginning on the lease 

as am exercised on specified tams, 
peTiodically unless terminated, and 

a numbr of lase  agreements, M e s t  
providing that the Company complies 

the fulfilment of such terms and 
to extend the lease agreements 

, the potential loss of key 

may decide to close down a given 
ve lease agreement on cost-effective terms may 

e t  the Company’s performance and 
the  chiso or's approval, and there can 

and excluding those 

on conmrercially reasonable 
restaurant locations may have an 

Furthermore, unde 
restaurant, and the 
prove impossible. Such a si 
operations. Closing down of 
be no assurance that such an 

effect an AmRest’s performance and operations. 
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e) AmRmt’s SQatUs of a Foreign ntity 1 
i n t d  rel&ons tire d~r, sutvj 
shmhddas attached to the 
numerous difbences 

g) RtstrictionS Imposed by Land 

On April 4th 2005, A&& 
Restaurants s.r.0. (the Ob1 
110m loan (the mount 

Under the credit facility agree 

., American Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. and American 
o EL credit fhcility agreement ptoviding for al PLN 
96m by way of Annex 2 of October 30th 2006). 

each of the Obligors has covenanted to observe certain 

oovenants wdd c8use an acceleration of loans 
have a rnsterial adverse aftW on the financial granted under the fbcility, which 

I 
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i) Risk Related to the Opening ofa KFC Restaurant in Bulgaria 

This will be the first AmRest’s restaurant in a new geographical and political region. The 
investment entails the risks that 9 consumer preferences in Bulgaria may be different and 
that the C o m p y  may lack adequate knowledge of the market. Other risks involved include 
the local regulatory risk. I 

j) Foreign-Exchange Risk 

Fluctuations of the exchange rate’of the Czech crown against the US dollar may result in 
foreign-exchange differenoes re to the valuation of l o a  between the related parties. 
Abrupt appreciation of the US against the Czech crown may have an adverse effect on 
the Company’s results. 

In addition, the rent due on a signi cant portion of the Group’s restaurant leases is indexed to 
US dollar or E m  exchange rates. Abrupt appreciation of the US dollar or Euro against the 
Polish zloty mrry have an adverse effecl on the results. 

k) Risk Related to the ImplemenfJntion of New IT Systems 

The costs related to the 
effect on the Company’s 
positively contribute to 

4” 
1 

of new IT systems may have a short-term neeative 
a long-term perspective, the expected benefitts will 

1) Expiry of the Transitional Peripd with Reduced VAT Rate 

The end of 2007 will be the end of the transitional period during which Poland may apply a 
reduced VAT mte of 7% on 
Increased prices of catering 

Services. In 2008, the applicable rate Will rise to 22%. 
lead to a temporary slackening of demand. 
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63. The Company’s Development d M m  and Strategy 

expansion into other countries of C 

In the near fbtwe, AmRe 

and Eastern Europe. I 

m e s t  intends to continu 
its qmtioaal efficiency. 

orgmisstiod s;tnrcture newssay 
m y  have an attverse effect on tlre 
slrea with a baring on the Orowp’s 
to be completed by the end of UK)B 

I 

Sp. z 0.0. or American Restaurants s.r.o., the largest of 
is aimed at lo wain^ the general and administrhtive 

its efforts aimed at increasing value for customers. 

intsnds to raise its custo*ers’ 

AmRcst is committed to uo 

ingraditnts, cand 
awmnem ofthe excellent re9taurants. 

Thn#lghfinther o&ring tasty d i h  raade with fitsh 

I 
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7. STATEMENTS OF THE MANAGEMENT BOARD 

I 
7.1. Statement on the Compliance with the Dutch Corporate Governance Code 

As a campmy incorporated undei the laws of the Netherlands, apart fkom applying Polish 
corporate governance rules, AmNest complies with Dutch corporate governance code by 
applying principles and best pracde provisions that arc applicable to the Management Board 
and Supervisory Board or by expl why the company deviates therehm. Although the 
Company tries to obey both h P h and Polish Corporate Governance Codes, in case of 
conflicting rules AmRest, due to b e  fact that its shares are quoted on the Warsaw Stock 
Exchange and most of its operati@s is located in Poland, tends to choose the Polish best 
practices. 

Dutch corporate governance codelis fully applied with the exception of the following best 
practice provisions that are not 1 1 1 ~  applied: 

Best practice provision II. 1.1 : role 
The Polish Gotptwate Guw- 
the appointmerit oftbe 
limitations with regards 

does not assume any time limits conccpning . Therefore the Company has no specific 

Best practice provision I1 I .  7: to 
Accordingto 
involved as 
important posirions held by 

wnccmhg I n a n m a t  board members Wig 
of the other listed companies. However, any 

ent board members needs to be notified M the 

&st pactice provision I .  2.1: umo 
Thn qtions to acquire shsreg are 
perf-ca eri’tsiia m M  to 
th% mployment wirh the 
&rant of optkm is indiroctl 
decision of the &nagemeat 

composition @the remmruticm 
onal mmncdon m q m t .  However, there are no 

pture. The vesting of options is oonditiancd upon 
vest@ pkxb Qf options vary fbm 3 to 5 years. The 
upon pcnfbrmance of particular employees atdl the 

Stock Exchange. Additi the Supervisory Board 

Best practice provision II. 2. 
Since the PCGC does not 

of the contmts of the 

iosure of remuneration 
apart fkom the total remuneration of 

Directors’ Rqxwt, no further elements 
made public. 
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Best pwtcrJce provision 111.1. I :  rol andprocedure 
There are no formal supervisory &ud bylaws that are made public. All the rules governing 
supervisory board’s duties and ponsibilities arc covered in the company’s Articles of 
Asmidon. T 

the Supervisory Board does not issue the 
DBnciaf year. However, the Supervisory 

‘s slandhg which is published in a manner 
Meeting of Shareholders. 

Board prepares only the evttlwati 
of replatory amouncemeat just 

Thcre are no I i d  

the PCW, there arz no limitations 

Best practiw provision 1II.3.5: 
The PCOC dacs not include 
S W S M y B o a r d b b e r  
AsaQcitrttion the Supervisov 
years. 

with regards to number of 
ay be a member. Acwrd$g to 

the maximum poiid af the 
wever, awrrdhg to the Company’s Artick of 
clul be appointed for a maximum period of 5 

Best practice provision 111.5.1-13: composition ami role of three key committees of the 
supervisory board 
So far no sepmk committees ha been mafcd witbin the Supcrvisory Board. AmRltst’s 
Supervisory BoaFd is of thca opini tbnd current s h  of the Company’s aperations dota not . Th& b i g o n  of setting up the audit and the require the oreation of such 
rcmumration 

Best praetice provision III. 7.3: rem eration 
According to the PCGC, there are mstdction~ concerning ownership of aad transactions in 
SecUfitiGs of other lislad collcpanies y supervisory board members. However, M e s t  bybws 
cover mstrietions and limi&ti~n~ nccming the ownership and tmssctions in AmRmt’s 

when the Company’s operations size requires it. 

$ 

stock. f 
&st practice provision III. 8. I * 

The PCGC does not inclu& 
common p d c e  in the 
tile Ivbnagmd Board 
Company’s Articles of M a t i o  

Best practice provision 111.8.4: o 
The PCGC does not include any 
common practice in the region of 
may also be an executive d i m  
Association. 

the management structure. The 
and Eastern Empe (CEE) is that the  chair^^^ of 
executive dinotor. This practice is applied to the 

I 
ntstrtjcture 

om with regards to the management structure, the 
ip@t@s thar the member of the Management Board 

pn@ce is applied to the Company’s Articles of 
U Y  lil I 
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Best practice provision Y: 3.1 : in& auditor function 
It is a practice in CEE 
themfm the internal auditor's 

7.2. Finmctrl Stabments - T 
To the best l c n w g e  of the Board of M e s t  Holdings N.V., the annual 
financial statexrents h c i a l  stateme& of 
the AmRest Group were applicable accounting standards and 
give a true and fair and financial results of the mest 
Group. This annual Db-' gives o tnre view of fhe developments, achievcnh.ents 
and &e situation of the Andtest including the description of key risks and threats. 

to the Mansgement Baards, 
e is dram up by AmRest's Mawgem& B&d. 

I 
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73. Appointment of the Entity Qualified to Audit Financial Statements 
Prhewaterhousecoopers Sp. z 0.01, the entity qualified to audit financial statements, which 
has audited the &ual financi staternenkof the AtnRest Group, was appointed in 
accordance with the applicable la 1 . The entity and the auditors performing the audit met the 
conditions necessary to issue an ixhpartial and independent audit opinion in accordance with 
the applicable laws. 
The agreement on the audit of the 2006 consolidated financial statements was executed on 
July loth 2006 between the C&y and PricewaterhouseCoopers Sp. z o.o., registered 
office at al. Armii Ludowej 14, Polan& which is an entity qualified to audit financial 
statements, entered in the list cid statements under Reg. No. 
144. The agreement provides nsolidated 5incial statements 
for the period January 1st - 31st 2006 and for the review of the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements r the period January 1st -June 30th 2006. The total ftes 
payable to PricewaterouscCoo~ ? or the audit and the revicW of the above Company’s 2006 
consolidbed financial statemas atnounted to EUR 101 thousand, while the total fees paid in 
respect of other services r e a d d  in 2006 amounted to EUR 5 thousand. Additionally 

in the Netherldes, audits both the consolidated and 
stand-alone f c i a l  statements T f the financial year ended as of 31 December 2006, The 
Pricewaterhoudmpers N.V., 

fees €or these services mounted to BUR 24 t h o d .  
In 2005 the total fees with regards to the audit of the Company’s consolidated finqncial 
stataments paid to KPMG Adyt $p. z 0.0. mounted to EUR 182 thousand and EUR 45 
thousand (with regards to other senhes). 

Wrochw, May 8th 2007 

Henry McGovem 

AmRast Holdings N.V. 
Management Board Member 

Wojciech Mroczytbki 

AmRest Holdings N.V. 
Management Board Member 
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- Appendix I to the Directors’ Report for 2006 - 

Appendix 1 - Significant Agreements 

1) Annex to the Distribution Aglwment with McLane Polskrr 

(31 March 23d 2006, an annex 
American Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. 
annex, effective fiom August 1 
changes the amounts of: the rm 
Distributor, the Distribution Fee 
export sales (to External Franc 
Poland’s, the Fr~inchisees’ 
reduced with effect h m  
services proviided under the 
computed as defined in an 
Distributor by American 
By virtue afthe annex, 
Agreement term was extended b 
ditmss the option to extend the 
Unless by December 1st 20 
will automatically expire on 
see Section 9.2.1. of the 

I 

bution Agreement of April 2nd 2003 between 
P o l h  Sp. z 0.0. of Bbnie was signed. The 

, exte&s the term of the Distribution Agreement and 
eed quantity of m e s t ’ s  purchases from the 
of its dculation) and the Distribution Fee for 

e rnhimum guaranaed quantity of AmRest 
Franchisees’ purchases fbm the Distributor was 
to 1 . h  mbic feet pa.  In considtration for the 

n Agreement the Distributor is entitled only toia fee 
to the Agreement (Distribution Pee), paid t@ tho . z o.o., the Frirachisaes and the External Fm-s. 

on Fee was reduced fism August 1st 20016 a& the 
i.e. mtil August 1st 2008. The parties a& to 
no later than thirteen months prior to its wiry. 

agree in writing to extend its tenn, the Agreeunent 
OS. For a description of the Distribution Agrement 

I 
2) Annex to the Credit Facility Ureement with ABN AMRO 

On October 30th 2006, Annex Nd. 2 to the Loan Agreement of April 4th 2005 between 
AmRest Holdings N.V., American Restaurants Sp. z o.o., American Restaurants s.r.0. and 
ABN AMRO Bank N.V. was Pursuant to he Annex, the credit facility limit was 
reduced to PLN 96% mainly by the Tranche B limit to PLN 2Om. Under the Annex, 
Tranche B is available until March 9 1 st 2009. Concurrently, December 3 1 st 2006 was set as 
the final repayment date for of the p k t  of Tranche A available to American Restaurants Sp. z 
o.o., in the mount of PLN 3m, ereas the final rapayment date of the part of Tranche A 
made available to American Rata 3 u l  ts s.r.o., amounting to CZK 5 18m, was postponed until 
March 31st 2013. The amounts dra% by American Restaurants s.r.0. will be repaid in equal 
quarterly instalments starting from Mmh 31st 2008. The Credit Facility Agreement was 
described in Current Report No. 6/2@5 of April 5th 2005. 

3) Development Agreement with hrger  King 

On March 8th 2007, AmRest conclqded a development agreement with Burger King Europe 
GmbH. The Parties to the Agreement are as follows: American Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. of 
Wroctaw, Poland (“Developeryy), abd Burger King Europe GmbH of Zug, Switzerland 
(“BKE”). Under the Agreement the @eveloper has a non-exclusive right to open and operate 
on a franchise basis Burger King r e s m t s  in Poland (“Development Area”). 
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c) The Deweloper restaurants in strict 
accordancewith mlaimal numbers of 
openingsintach opmeat A m e n t .  

d) The Developer comply with the development procedures and 
in the Development Agreement. The development 

other things, the hnchise appmd and th4 site procudm 
r e q b e n t s  as sert 

a p v a l .  

sbdl at dl times maintain in strict confidence 
x.mbthg information and metha and all 

flting to the lmethods of operatine &nd the ~ G t i o r l a l  
King- revealed by BKE to the Developer. 

damages and/or contmctual Iiabilis to 
to any of the obligatimx, underta&ings, 

r &r injury, illness or death of petsons 
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I to the Directam' Report for 2006 - 
4) Framework Agreements witb Burger King 

On March 9th 2007, AmRest published information concerning framework terms and 
Burger King Europe GmbB each 
to the Agreement will be American 
and Burger King Europe GmbH of 

Under the Agreement, the Franchisee is grantA the 
trademah and the Burger King system fbr the 

Adtest Holdings N.V. (the Guarantor) 
wiil perform all its obligations under the 
10 years h m  the date on which a given 

to extend the Agreement for another 10 
Agreement provides, among 

Zug, Switzerland (as the 
licence for the use of 
purpose to operate 
guarantees to the 
Franchise 

a) Franchisee must compsy strictly with all Burger King requirements concerning 
building and premise$ signs, equipment, menu, service, hygiene, uniforms, 
advertising and promot$mal materials, sources of supply etc. 

I 

b) Franchisee must pay mhnthly continuing fees to the Franchisor equal to 5% of the 

c) Franchisee must pay 4onthly continuing advertising and sales promotion fees 
equal to 5% of the Omss Sales of the Burger King restaurant operated by 
Franchisee. 

Gross Sales of the Burgbr King restaurant operated by Franchisee. 
I 

d) Employees of Franchism must participate in initial and ongoing training programs 
as specified by the FmGhisor. 

e) Franchisee, during the term of the agmment, shall not directly or indirectly 
engage: in the operationsof any restaurant, except as licensed by Franchisor, which 
utilizes or duplicates thd Burger King business. 

f )  Franchisee must complgt with all of the other requirements and restrictions set out 
in the Franchise Agreentent. 

5) Major Insurance Agreements Concluded in 2066 by the W e s t  Group Companies: 

a) American Restaurants S@. z 0.0.: 

liability for damages and product liability - 
policy (covering property, electronic equipment 

concluded wit4 Polska S.A. 
0 One-year 

with T.U. Allianz Polska S.A. 

I 
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I 

for damages and product liabrility - 
and 1- of earnipgs) - 

liability for damages and product liability - 
property) - concluded with 

I 
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AmRest Holdings N.V. 

-1 

- App J 2 to the Dh.acrors' Reportfor 2006 - 

Appendix 2 - Related Party Agreements 

1) On February 3rd 2006, American Restaurants Sp. z o.o., a subsidiary, acquired 10% of 
shares in SCM Sp. z o.o., with a p a  value of PLN 10,0o0, thereby increasing its sharehdding 
to 45%. Under the agreement of'Apri1 29th 2005, SCM Sp. z 0.0. provides to American 
Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. services w ch consist in intermediation and negotiation of terms of 
supplies for the restaurants, inclu f;[ng the negotiation of terms of distribution agreements. In 
consideration for the services rcccivcd, American Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. is to pay fees of 1.5% 
of the value of ordered products Oit 2% of the value of ordered restaurant equipment. Under 
the agreement SCM is to be the sok provider of this type of services to American Restaurants 
Sp. z 0.0. The agreement was conduded for six years, with an option to extend its term upon 
awritten notice. Under the agreament, American Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. agreed to order 
products and equipment of the midimum value of Euw 27Sm in each 12 months during the 
agreement term. The services are td be provided on an SLA basis, which means that American 
Restaurants Sp. z 0.0. may ten&#e the agreement if the quality of services deteriorates in 
relation to the standards stipulated in the agreement. The estimated value of the agreement 
over its term is PLN 10.5m. 

b r n  April 1st 2006, 

which had apoeitive eff& on tks 
fill ymr 2006. I 

wits USD 6Sm. FoUowiq the purchase of all shattes in 

w.at- its market position in 
Sition af rescaurants k Hungary provid@ an 
the dmlopment of existing and new restatvant 

Hungary. The execution of 

Central and Eastem 
opportunity for fbrt3.w 

I 

4) On September 22nd 2006, 
concludd a loan agreememt. 
loan amount was increased 
the repayment date from to Deccrmbor 31s 2007. I 

Restauranas Sp. z 0.0. and American Rmtamts Kft. 
of an annex of Deccanber 20th 2006, the q u m  
to PL.N 15m. The PsutieS also agreed to postpone 
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-Append& I to the Directors' Reportfir 2006 - 

5) On October 34% 2006, 
acquired 1,oOo shates in Doris 
represientiag 1 w e  ofthis eo 
PLN490,OO. Doris 2006 S 
warsaw. The lease 
the prerniscs. 
more details of the transaction. 

Restavrants Sp. z o.o., the Company's subsidiary, 
Sp. z 0.0. with a par value of PLN 50 per share, 

s h e  capital. The total price ofthe slump was 
b lessee dpmnigcs located at ul. Cbmiel4a2 in 

tho possiMlity of wndudng Catering business on 
of its rczstaursnts at this location. See Note 3 for 

, 

6) On December 22nd 2006, a C@h Pooling Agreement was concluded with ABN AMRO 
Bank (Polsh) S.A. of Warsaw. /Apart f h m  AmRest, the parties to the agreement also 
included the hllowing subs iMek:  American Restaotants Sp. z o.o., American Restaurants 
s.r.0. and Oderia Arks Sp. z 0.0. ' h e  agreement was concluded to increase the cfficierncy of 
cash management by the membeq, of the AmRest Group. The agreement was concluded for 
an indefinite period and m y  be by e i k  party subject to a 30 days' notice period. 
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AmRest Holdings N.V, 

Consolidated balance sheet as kt 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005 
Nota 2006 

in tkwrcmdr ofPoIish zIqv 
Asset8 
Propmy, plant and equipment 
Goodwill 
Other intangible assets 

Investment in wsociam 
Olher non-cwIcILt assats 
Deferred tax asset 
Total mon-cumnt asseta 

lnventorics 
Trade and other rcceivablcs 
Incorn tax receivable 
Other current assets 

Weld-to-maturity financial ass& 
C& and cash equivalents 
Assets held for sale 

Tobl current web 

Total araetr 

Equitr 
Share capital 
Reserves 
Accumulated dcfcit 
Profit for tho period 
Translation reserve 
Equity attributable to shareholderr o f  the parent 

Minority interat 
Total equity 
Lia billties 
Interest-bewing loans and borrowings 
Finance lease liabilities 
Employee benefits 
Provisions 
Deferred tax liabilities 
Other non-cumtit liabilities 
Totd nor-eurrd Ila bilitias 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
Finance lease liabilities I 

Trade and other accounts payable 
Income tax liabilities 
Total aurrent Ikbllities 

Total liabilities 
Total equity and liebilitles 

2005 
lrutrted) 

IO 191 705 
I2 23 516 
1 1  12 829 
3.31 
13 

1221 
17 726 

174 141 
4 765 
16 280 
574 

19 750 
9 9 336 I 1  540 

256 333 227 050 
14 8 134 5 973 
I5 

16 
I8 
17 

I 1  460 

5 976 
9 984 

I 3  463 

5 281 
2 380 

25 241 31 575 
13 3 861 3 219 

64 656 61 891 

3 320 989 288 941 
20 

519 
219 137 
(95 51 I) 

519 
218 640 

(117638) 
38 583 22 127 
(4 943) (5781 
157 f85 123 070 

79 20 
I57 864 I23 090 

21 72 140 80 440 
226 3 326 3 237 
22 913 79 1 

23 5 565 4 690 
9 760 1 263 
24 1721 2 168 

84 425 92 589 

21 918 I8 321 
2926 68 45 
25 75 448 54 896 

2 266 
78 700 73 262 

165 851 
320 989 288 94 1 
163 125 3 

see rrccompruying notes to the contolidflfedfwiai ~~#-K@PERS 
Initialled on behalf of 
PricewatethouseCoopen 
Accountants N.V. 
Rotterdam 
1- for Identification purposes only 
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AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Consolidated income statemcq 
for the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 

I , 1 ti,‘ 1; ’ ‘ A  
in thoruaRdc of Polish zlom 

‘ I  3 629 326 499 810 

(210 926) (167 283) 

(30 590) (2 462) 

(1 19 33 I )  (91 %9) 

(37 300) (29 700) 
(105 rn) I ctamj 
(543 924) (434 930) 

(40 In) (31 741) 

Profit for the period 

5 

5 

6 

10,19 

S 

(41 290) (35 949) 
(3 416) ’ (2710) 

5 405 6 826 

1411 (2 71 1) 

(3 117) (5 101) 

(1 937) 

44 493 23 298 3 

Attributable to: 
Minority interest 
Equity holdom of the parent 3 

Basic earnings per shnm in P o l i  zloty 

Diluted earnings per l a r e  in Polish zloty 

See accosl;panyfng notes to tht conso/idated~amid statements. 

29 

29 

3,7 8 671 1351 

(4 147) (9 769) 

459 

3,s 
3.31 

9 m, IS 339 

(IO 114) . 6772 3 9  

311 642 . 25111 

59 

38 583 
(16) 

22 127 

2.86 

2.85 

PticewaterhouseCoopets 
Accountants N.V 
for identification purposes only 
Rotterdam 

1.78 

1.78 

30 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Consolidated statement of cash flows 
for the twelve months ended 3j Deeember 2086 
in thowandp ofPoIkh zlw 
Cash flows from operating rctMties 
Profit before tax 
Adjustments for: 
Share of profit of associates 
Amortization 
Depreciation 
Interest expense, net 
FomEgn exchange gain, net 
(Gain)noss on disposal of property, plant, ctpipment, intangibles and 
assets held for d e  
Impairment of property, plant, equipment, intangibles and assets held for 
sale 5 

22 
waiver of loans 7 5 2  

Note 

31 
I I  
I O  
7.8 
7,8 
IO 

I 
Equity-atled shan based payments e x p u y s  

Working capital changes: 
Change in recehmbltlr 
Change in inventories 
Change in other assets 
Change in payablcs and other liabilities 
Change in other provisions and employec benefits 
Incometaxespaid 
Inttrcst paid 
Other 
Net cash pmvidd by operating activitia 

Cub now Prom investing nctMes 
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash 8cqliind 
Proceeds from tkc d e  of prspaty, plant a@ @pment and intangibles 
Roceods from the sale of assets held for salt 
Acquisition of proprty, plant wd @ p m d  
Acquisition of intangible assets 
Acquisition of hckl-to-lwburity m i a l  ass& 
Acquisition of investments in associatcS 
Loans repaid 
Net cask uMd in IavsSting activities 

4 
10 
19 
10 
11 
18 
31 

48956 15 339 

(637) 
6 101) 

37 485 
3 sn 

(4 na) 

(I 41 1) 

(459) 
3 817 

30 634 
' 5719 

( I  820) 

2711 

2 540 
491 

Q 3%) 

, 2733 
203 

-mz 
I Initialled on behalf d 
Pricewarehudoopen 
Accountants N.V. 
for identifiation purposes onfv I Rotterdam 
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&Rest Holdinw N.V. 

1 Compmy arervlcw and s?n’fgcpllt sccoantiug policies 
(a) Bac%cgroand I 

established as a joint stock company in Wber 
office is located in Prins Bernhadplein 200, 

any’s ~arporata offices are located in Wmlaw, 

raferred to as the “Gmup”. 

The Consolidated Fmencibll S m at d forthe twtlva months ended 31 December 2006 
d on the Group’s equity Inbntst in associates. 

enfsweie appFovedby th Management Board on 8 May Tb following coasolidated fin an^ 
2007. 
The principal wtiviCy of the Oroup, nducted by its m W e s  in Poland, the Casch Republic .and 
Hungary, is to operate Kenhboky F k d  Chicken and Pizza Hut h c h i s e d  testaurants, d 
in Polhnd, the Czech Rqnablic ,padep Drive” and mtaumnts. Solely in Poland ,,Ice*Land” ice cream 

On 27 April 2005, the shares of @Rest Holdings N.V. commenced trading on the Wartaw 
Smk Exchmge (“WSE”) in PoIani$ 
Prior Bo 27 April 2005, the Cornpan was jointly owned and wntmlled by hterdonal ResWant 
Inv- LLC States and Kentucky Fried Chicken Poland Holdings BV 
(‘WC BV”) of the Nebrlmds. €3 the initisll public affuing each shareholder possessed a 50% 

IRI is a wholly-owned subdiary of American Rctaij Concepts, Inc. of the United States 
(“ARC”), wheoeas KFC BV is  a wb Ily-omed subsidiary of Yum! Brands, Inc. (“WU!”) ofthe 

1 

OIItkts d ,~Feshpoint” restaurantJ. ; 

of the U 

owrship. + 
United States. t 
In mjunction with the listing of the~Compy’s shtves on the WE, YUM! sold all of its shares in 
the Company and is no lone a Moreover, IRIalso sold part of its shares as a result of 
the Canpany’s w) on the SBOck 
As8t31Decmmber2006rhe ’s largest shareholder with a 373% voting rights and 

P b  Hut KFC restaprants agreements with YUM! and YUM! 
lt6smmm ubsidiary of YUM1. Fa% fhnchise 
-@tit has 8 tcffn O f  k 4 l  by the Compltny for further ten years, 
subject to certain conditions 
YUM! committed to noti@ the least six months befwe 
the fvst KFC OT PiPa Hut lic or Hungary. Dwhg 
this peritxi# the compatly ontbissue.YUM!hasitldicatedthatat 
present it has Ilk) plans to prospeCtive m Poland, Czech 
Republic and Hungary or to open n 

0~pintaraStremainsIRI .  I 

$4 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Amcflera- Pmgll& 
s.r.0. czcoh 

Rspoblic 

Oalsrta Ark8 Sp. z RO. 

Amrcst Ukrdna t.0.w. Kiev, 
Ukraine 

Fried Chickon sxo. Ragus, 
c;tebr 
atpublic 

Dorlo2906!Jpp. E0.0. 

oridbx I sp. t 0.0.. w-. 
Poland 

No CUT t r c t i v b  

AnrericMRestpucmts 
sp. z 0.0. 

Ptar;a Hut s.r.0. 

180.00 % d w  
2060 

IOO.OOH 

iBo.ooJc my 
2009 

I 

Ioo.Do% 

46.00% ssptemkcr 
2003. 

P r ~ a t e h o u s ~ r s  
Accynpnts N.V. 
for identtficatbn purpo~s  only I Rotterdam ~, 54 
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OlobJcoltmmiUblw wuarw. 
SBNW sp. 2 0.0. ip 
liquidation 

Polmad 

W d W k i E  
("A;Rnnwnierrion 
strvica LLC. 

w@mY- 
?wmm sp. 2 0.0. 

AmriamRcdlunntr 
sp. Z 0.0. 
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AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the ConsolMated Financial &ntt-ments 
(in tbousandr of Polish Zroty uslsrs o t h e p e  stated) 

(b) Statement of compihn* 
Theconso 
R e p o ~ g  
Board(IASB)mado 
The following new standard$ 
financial year ending 3 1 Decetn 

been prepared in s#xordanoe with International Financial 
olls adopted by the IntematEOnal Accounting Standards 

ts to standards and interpretations are mandatory for 

Union) ftnther to &e IAS Regulation (EC 1606/2002). 

e 

e 

e 

Amendment to IAS 19, ~ c t u a h l  gains and losses, Group plans and disclosures’, 
effective for annuel perioq beginning on or aftar 1 Janua~y 2006. This amendment is not 
relevant for the Group. I 

Amendment to IAS 39, Amendment to ‘ n e  fair value option’, emctive for annual 
periods beginning on or a b r  1 January 2006, This amendment is not relevant for the 
Ckoup. 
Amendment to IAS 21, 
for annual periods 
for the Group. 
Amendment to 

endment ‘Net inveetment in a foreign operation’, 
on or aRer 1 January 2006. This amendment is 

‘Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intra@ up 
beginning on or after 1 Jenuapy 2006, ‘&is 

‘Financial guarantee wntmts’, 
206.  This amendment is not 

IFRS 6, ‘Expbration for d evaluation of mineral msowrces’, eff’tive for annual 
periods beginning on or rrff 1 January 2006. This standard is not relevant for the GMEIp. 

January 2006. The Group has reviewed its contracts, This 

relevant for the Group. 

IFRIC 4, ‘Determ arrangement contains a lease’, effective for annual 
periods beginning on or 
interpmtation has no in on the f m c i a l  statements. 

sing from decommissioning, restoration and 
, effectfve for mual periods beginning on or afbr 1 
not relevant for the Group; and 

e 
IFRIC 6, ‘Liabilities 
electronic 

participating in a specific market - waste electrical and 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 

for the Group. 
I 

The following new standards, 
are not e%&e for 2006 and 

and interpretations have been issued but 

ent Approach under LAS29’, effective for annual 
1 March 2006. Management do not expect the 

periods beginning on or after 1 May 
ing the impact of ERIC 8 on the Group’s 
will have no material impact on the finanaid 

IFRIC7, ‘Applying the 
periods beginning on o 
interpretation to be relev 

IFIUC 8, ‘Scope of 
2006. Management i 
operations but expect 
Statements; 

.57 
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AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Note8 to the Consolidated Financial btatements 
(la thousands of Polish zloty unless otbekisa stated) 

0 IFRIC9, ‘Reassessment #of Embedded Derivatives’, effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 Jdne 2006. Management do not expect the interpretation to be 
relevant for the Group; and 

0 IFNC 10, ‘Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment’, eactive for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 ovember 2006. IFRIC 10 prohibits the impairment losses 
recognized in an interim eriod on goodwill, investments in equity instruments and 
investments in financial ets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent balance 
sheet date. The Gmup willlapply ERIC 10. The management is already assessing impact 
of IFMC 10 on Group’s operations but do not expect the interpretation to have material 
impact on the financial stabmants. 

ury Share Transactions’, effective for annual periods 
007. IFIUC 1 1 addresses application of IFRS 2 in case of 
by the Company as a payment for received goods or 

ity instnunent by my other entity frorpl the Group. ?he 
impact of ERIC 11 on Group’s operations but do not 
aterial impact on the financial statements. 

ERIC 12, ‘service concc$sion Ammgftments’, effective for annu periods beginfiing 
on or after 1 January 20081 IFMC 12 gives guidance on the accounting by operators for 
public-to-private service bncession arrangements. Management do not expect t$ 
interpetation to be relevant for the Group. 

IFRS 7, ’Financial instrurhnk Disclosures’, effective for annual periods beginning on 
or a f k  1 January 2007.14 1, ‘Amendments to capital disclosures’, efftetive for annual 
periods beginning on or &r 1 January 2007. The Group assessad the impact of IFRS 7 
and the amendment to IA$ 1 and concluded that standard should not have a signifiwnt 
impact on disclosure. The proup will apply IFRS 7 and the amendment to IAS 1 from 
annual periods beginning 1 rJmuary 2007. 

IFRS 8, ‘Operating Segm nt’ , effective for m u a l  periods beginning on or aAer 1 
January 2009. lFRS 8 sup des IAS 14. According to IFRS 8 operating segments ~xe 
components of entity and are regularly reviewed by entity’s chief operation decision 

apply IFRS 8 from annual eriods beginning 1 January 2008. 

i 
IFRIC 1 1, ‘Grou 

I ;  
0 

0 

makers. Relevant positio .f are presented basing on internal reporting. The Group will 



AmRest Hol&gs N.V. 

Nota to the Consolidated Financtalbtatements 
<in theutrsdr e f ~ o ~ i s h  onim eta+ statmi) 

I 
(e) Bash of preparation I 

 he r n m ~  ~i statem+ are -ted in k r i  woty (PLN), rnumied to the nalrrest - 0. 
The Comlidatcd Financial are prepred on the historicorl cost basis. N o n - c m t  assets 
heldfbrsaleamstetedatthe 
The preparation of financial uires management to make 
judgments, estimates of policies and repotted 
amounts o f  assets and I and associated assumptions 

that are believed to be reasonclble 
of which fonn the basis of making the judgments about 

f h n  other sources. Adual 

om are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
in tb period in which the estimate is revised if 

don arad fature peri& if 

IFRSs that have a significant effect on 
risk of material adjustment in the qext 

year rn 6Iscwsed in Note 33, 
The mxmtingpolicies setout bel0 haw beenapplii consi&ntiyto all paid  pscntcd in these 
c o n s o w  fmneial SZaQnentr. 4 acwunthg policies bave been @id c m d s t d y  by Gmup 

I 

Carryhgarno~rad i3irvalue hcosts to sell. 

results may differ ftom tha  e 

the revision affects both 

, 

entities. I 
I 

Busis of consolidation 
Subsidiaries 
Subsidiaries are all entities over 4hich the Group has the power to govern the financial cnd 

the voting rights. b e  
existence and effect of that are eumtiy exercisabk or convertible are 

. Subsidiaries am filly 
consolidatad from th Group. They are be- 

The purchac method isition of subsidiaries by the 
of the assets given, e q ~ t y  

or ussumed at &e date of exohnnge~ plus costs dire& 
and contingent lhbili$es 

ity at their fair values at the acquisition 

the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable 
. if the cost of acquisition is lm than the fair valw of 
die differearn is mgnised  directly in the income 

attributable to the 
assumed in a business 
date, imspectire of the 
The excess of the cost of acquis 
net assets acqllircd is recorded 
the net assets of the subsidiary 
statement. I 



I AsAIRmt Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the cobtolid 
(ia tho&usdl of Polish zloty uabst 

Inter-company tmsacti 
companies are elimiaated. U 
indicator of &e mset tnmsfemd. 
necessary to ensum corn bytheoroup. 
lYansactions and m 

i s d  gains on transactions between group 
inabed but considered as an impaim$ent 
subsidiaries have been changed wlltrt 

The Group applies a poli 
parties external to the G 
Group that are recorded in 
goodwill, being the diffemw 
the carrying value of net assets 

Associates 

actions with minority interests as transactions with 
to minority i n t a w s  result in gains and lossas for the 

e statemsat. pwohasgs &om minority interests result in 
consideration: paid and the relevant share acquired of 

I 

significant influence but not conpol, 
2W4 and 50% of the voting ti ts. 

for using the equity method of awmting and \are 
sooiates includes goodwill (net of c y  

uisition ptofits or losses is reoognised in the in e 
ovements in reserves is recop id  in reserves. % e 

are adjusted against the canying mount of b e  
gseis in an assaaiateaguals or exceeds its in- in fie 

roup doas not m p i m  f’urthor los$es, 
behalf of the asgachte. 

Undissd gains on transaction its aJsooiates am eliminated to the 
extent of the Group’s ised losses me also eliminated unless the 
transaction pwicbs evidence of impinnwit of tbe mwt transfeneel. Accounting policies of 
associates have bten changed necamry to ensure aorrsistancy with the policies adopted by 

3 generally acoompanying 
Investments in associates 

The at.oup’s ahm of its 
stutmen& and its share 
cumuli&e postacqu 
investment whsrl the 

the Group. 

(e) Farsign currency 
Functional rmdpesentutim corrrenby 
Items included in the financial 
currency of the primary 
currency’). Functional 
currency of the Czech 

enW are measured using the 
m which the entity operates (‘the functional 

is the Polish Zloty (PLN), the finctional 
while the functional cwrency of 

the Hungarian operations is tht HuF$anm Forint 0. 

financial statements are presented idPLN which is the h u p  presentation currency. 

Foreign c ~ e r u y  transactions , 
As the majority of its operations I and transactions &re PLN denominated, the consolidated 

Transactions in foreign currencies translated at the fmign exchange rate ruling at the date of 
the tranwtion. Monetary as liabilities denomiwted in such c m c h  at the balance 
sheet date are translated to icsrblc fimctional currency at the foreign exchange ate 
prevailing at $rat date. All ces arising on tmwlqtion am mgnised in the income 
statement. Non-monetary nd liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are 
measured in terms of histori we translated at the fmign exchange rate BS of the date of , - 
the transaction. 

hicewaterhouseCmpers 
Accountants N.V. 
for identification purposes onh, 
Rotterdam 60 
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AmRest Hotdlng N.V. ' I  
Notes to the Consolidated Financial tatemenb 
(in thousand8 afPolbh zhty n i b  0th stated) 

Restaurant development w e t s  

Direct costs associ 
site, inchding direct h t d  
those site-specific costs 
considered probable are c 
("Property plant and 
development costs 
previoudy capital 
are amortized over the 

I 

'sition and the construction of a restaurant on that 
11-related costs are capitalized. Only 

time that the site acquisition is 
in restaurant development assets 
s determined that a site for which 
be acquired or developed, any 

are expensed. Restaurant development assets 

+ 

The G r o y  leases 
where the G m p  has s 
leasea FiDance k s  
of the I d  property and* 
is al- between the Ihb 
fmanee balanee outstanding. 
included in the balance she& as 
is cbrged to the inconre statame 
of iatarest an the 
equipment acquired under 
ass& or time lease term. 

and equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipnient 
the risks and rewards of ownership are ciassified as fimce 
at the lease's cammen-ent at the lower of the fhir value 

u3n lease payments. Euuh lease paynient 
obargts so as to achieve a mstant  rat^ on the 

mtd obligwions, net of finance charges, 
w. The interest element of the fmance st 
ad 50 as to produce a constant pariodic x te 

ea& period. The proparty, plant wd 
s is depreciated over the shorter of the usehl life of khe 

1 

Ssrtasequent costs 

Subsequent costs arc included in 
appropriate, only when it is 
flow to the (3roup and the 
maintenance are charged to 

mount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
economic benefits associated with the item will 

be rneasmd reliably. AI1 other repairs and 
during the financial period in which they are 

incurred. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation is charged to the! income statement on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each 

construction are not depreciated., 

of an item of property, plant and equipment, and 
mjor components that are for separat.edy. Land and assets under 

The estimated useful lives are asifollows: 
Buildings I 30-40year~ 

Machinesyandeq~ment 

R-t development ' assets (including leasehold loyeais* 

5- Vehicles 
0 Othertangibleassets 4-8- 

i l I 4 X O V ~ ~ t S )  4-8- 

* the lesser of 10 years OT the length of thd respective lease. 

The assets' residual values, merhod bf depreciation and useful lives are reassessed annually. 

Initialled on behalf of I P r i m a  tefhou$&O0DW5 
Accountants N.V . I for identification uumoses onlv 

IRotterdam . . 
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AmRwt Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial ptatements 
(in tholnrada ofPolish zloty rnkrs othcrnira stated) 

(a) Intangible assets 

Computer sofiare 

Acquired computer software 
and bring to use the specific 

are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire 
These costs are mortised over their estimated useful lives. 

Favourable leases 
location lease contracts acquired on acquisition of 

Favowable lease intangible assets are subsidiaries with 
stated at cost less accumulated 

accuunting policy (n) below). 
I 

Trademark 

Trademarkq are shown at historical cost. Trademarks have a finite usefbl life and are oanied at 
cost less accumulated 
allocate the cost of 
Righ to we P&xa HutandKFC 
See accounting policy (0 above. 
Other intangible assets 

is calculated using tha straight-line methoa EO 
estimated usehl lives. 

Other intangible assets are stated a?! cost less accumulated amortisation and potential impairment 
losses (sea accounting policy (n) below). 

Amorhkation 

Amortization is charged to the incan+ statement on a straight-line basis over the estimabd usefbl lives 
U and intangible assets with an indefhite 

bhassetsare amortized fiwnthe date they 
bdance sheet date (see aooounting policy 

The estimated usefbl lives of other ' 
are a v a W e  for use. 

giile assets m as follows: 
4-5years 

0 Favourableleases 2-10years* 
Tradamic 5- . RightstousepiazaHutrpmdIcjFc~ 10 years 

n j m  
Soibvarelicenses 

Otherintangibleassets 5 - l o w  
Favourable lease intangible assets ~ 1 c  Bmo1ti9w ova the r u d i n g  1- term ofthe respective 1- agmmcnt. 

(i) Goodwill 

All business combinations are acvunted for by applying the purchase method. Goodwill 
represents the difference betwed the cost of the acquisition and the fair value of the net 
identifiabfe assets acquired. 
Goodwill on acquisitio 
stated at cost less ac 
generating units and is 
accounting policy (n)). In 
in the carryiqg amount of the 

diaries/businesses is included in intangible assets a d  
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash- 

is tested annually for impairment (see 
the sanying amount of g o o d d  is included 



AmRcdt Holdings N.V. 

Nom to the Consolidated Ftnoacid tatentents 
(in &armada e t  Wish zloty urkg eth + stated) 

Gains or losses on the disposal of entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to 

Costs i n c u d  to create self-ge+td goodwiil and trademarks are expend in the i n a m e  
statement as i n c u d .  

thel entity sold. 

j) Financial assets 

The Group classifies its financi 
loss, loans and receivables, 
whzh the finanOiat assaS 
fmancisl assets at inirist 
Avairable-fo-saleefinancirri m e &  

Available-for-sale financial 
category or not classified 
have any investments c 
dates. 
Financial ass@& at fair value profir br loss 

gories: at fkir value through profit or 
sale. The classifidon depends on the purpose for . Mmagemcnt determines the classification of its 

tacvalutes this designation at every reporting date. 

me non-derivatives that are either designated in this 
described below. The Group does not 

financial assets at the balance sheet 

s: ‘financial assets heid for trading’, and those 
or 10s at inaption. A financial met is clmsided 

y for the purpae of selling in the short term or if so 
are dm categarised as ‘held for tradii’ unless 

in this category are classified as current asseu if 
expected to be tcaiised within 12 months of @e 

not have any investments classified as finamid 
balance sheet dam. 

dwilgaatcd by managcmcnt. 
they we designated tls hedges 

balance sheet date. The 
assets at fair value profit 
Held-to-marurCry$nancfinmtciarl apsets 

are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
maturities that the Group’s rnanageincnt has $le 

ty. Ifthe Group wae to seH other than h 
i d   sets, the whole category wuld be 

h r  sale. Held-twnatwity financial assets alre 
for those with maturities less than 12 months fiom included in m n - o m t  assets> 

the balance sheet date 
Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivab 
that me not quoted in an activ 
greater than 12 months after 
impairment losses and nre 
maturities not greater than e balance sheat date (set accounting policy (IC) 

plus transwtion costs fm all fi 
Financial assets card 
and transeofion costs 



AmRsst Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Fimmeial 
(h thawrtds ef Polbb zloty saks othe 

Available-forale financid assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are 
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and beld-to-maturity investments are 
carried at martimi cost using the ffective interest method 

(k) Trade and othep receiv 1 bles 
Trade and &r meivltbles are non-derivative fmcial  assets with k e d  or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in A active msukcz. Thsy are tecognised initially at hir value and 
subsequently measured at aortize# cost less impdnnerpt losses (see accounting policy (n)). 

1 

(1) Invenlto riea 

Inventories comprise mainly m 'terislls and are stated at the lower of purchase price and 
net realizable value. Net &le vatule is the estimated selling price in the ordinetry 
course of bminess, less the est@ted costs of ampletion and selling cxjxmses. The cost 
ofinm~nes is based on the firsbatat phciilc and includes expcndtm incurred in 
acquiring the inventories them to their existing location and condition. 

(m) Cash 

Cash and cash equivalents 
term highly liquid 

cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short- 
maturities of three months or less. 

(n) Impairment 

The carrying amount 
policy (I)) and de& 
balance sheet date 
such indication ex& 
intangible assets that h 
for use, the recoverable amo 
loss is recognisd whenever 
exceeds its recov 
statement. 

t for inventories (see accounting 
policy (v)), me reviewed at each 
indication of impairment. If any 

e amount is estimated. For goodvdll, 
assets that are not yet available 

balance sheet date. An impairment 
an asset or its cash-generating upit 

are recognised in the income 

Impairment of trade and 
that the h u p  will not be ab 
of the meivsdble. If there is 
canidd at amortized c 
diffmnce between the 
cash flows discounted at the 
in the income statement. 

is objective evidence 
amounts due according to the original terms 

loss on receivables 
e loss is measured as h e  
vdue of edmated fbtdre 

loss is recognised 

The recoverable amount of 
and value in we. In asses 
discounted to their present 
market assessments of tho ti 
an asset which does not g 
amount is determined for 
cases as cash generating units 

Restaurants are evaluated mi 
of potential impairment. 

of their fair value less costs to sell 
due in we, the estimated future cash flows are 
wing a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

ney and the risks specific to the asset. For 
independent cash flows, the recoverable 

to which the asset belongs. In such 
separate restaurants. 

ing lossesyy as the primary indicator 

I 

PricewaterhouseCoopers 
Accountants N.V. 
for idcntificatron purposes only 
Rotterdam P5 
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NOW fo the Cmsoltdated Finrmci 

r of potential irnprrinnent, disoounted estimated 
rable amount of the related assets. "he impai ent 
RQWS Erom continuing operation of the restaurant i and 

restaurant is reviewed for 
impairment and depreciable li ly. Likewise, a liability is 
recorded for any fmse terrnh& 

Reversals of impairment 

An impairment loss in rwpect f Feceivcrbles carried at amortized cost is reversed if the 
subsequent increase in mverabl 1 amount can be related objectively to an event occumng &er 
the impaimmt loss was rwqpi 
An iaphnmt goodwill is not m v e d .  In respat of d e r  awts, an 
impairment loss has been an indication that the impairment loss may no 
longer exist md ge in the estimates used to determine the recoverbble 

An impairment loss i s  re y to the extent &at the asset's wrying amount does mot 
weed the w i n g  would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
srrrofization, if no im 
(0) Intarrest bea 

associatad with the closing of the restaurant. 

amount. I 

ost being their fair value, 
barnwings are stated at 

ien value being rrtco@ed 
figs wmg the effective interest date 

my $difference between the settled cost slnd 

an unccrnditbnal righ) to 

amortiz4d esst with any 

method. 
If the loan is settled hhte the 

Bornwingo m classified as 

(p) Share capital 
Ordinary shares am classifled as eq ity, 
Incremental casta directly atcributa le to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity 
&o a deduction €IW~ the proceeds. 

(a) Employee bcnefb 
h e - b e d  compensation 

t 
i 
I 

66 Accountants N.V. ' 
for identification purposes only 
Rotterdam 



I .,. , 9 AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial $htements 
(in thorsmds o f  Polbh zloty unless &herbhe stated) 

Long-term service benefits 
The Company’s net obligation in 
thst employees have earmi in 
represents the Oroup’s e&me~k of 
in the current arrd prior periods, diawtmted b its present value. 

of long-term service benefits is the amount of future benefit 
for their service in the cumit and prior periods. The obligation 

bemflts that employees have Bamed in m t m  for their service 

Pension accounting 

Mandaw pension contributians are accounted for as defined contribution plan on accrual basis and 
presantexl in Profit and Loss Accotmt~the line Upayrollandbmployee benefits’’. 

(r) Provisions 

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a legal or constructhe 
obligation as a result of a pa;pt;went, and it is probable that an outflow of ewnomic 
benefits will be required to M b  the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions we 
determined by discounting the epEpected ffim cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects 
current market assessments of tk time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. 
A provision for restructuring is mgnised when the Group has approved EL detaikd and 
formal restructuring plan, 
momcd publicly, Future 

restructuring has either commenced or has been 
costs are not provided for. 

Site restoration 
Management analyses potential she restomtion costs and recognise provision if these costs 
are material. 
Onerous contracts 
A provision for onerous cantracts $ m g n i s e d  when the expected benefits to be derived by the 
Group from a contract are 
contract. ‘ I ’  

cost ?f meeting its obligations under the 

(a) Trade and other payabEb 

They are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. 

(t) Revenue recognition I 

Revenues comprise the fair value od the sale of goods, net of value-added tax. Sales of goods are 
recognised when a Group enti9 sell$ a product to the customer. Sales are typically in cash. 

(u) Operating leaare, occupapcy coart 

Leases in which a significant j w ~ o n  of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained 
by the lessor are classified as op$ating leases. Payments made under operating leases are 
charged to the income statme@ on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
Lease incentives received are rebgnised in the income statement as an integral part of 
the total lease expense. 
operating lease relates mainly ta the premises in which restaurants operate. Lease costs 
are recognisod in the income staqment as ,,Occupancy and other operating expenses”. 

I 

k7 



AmRcst Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Canaeltdated Financial Statements 
(in thousands of Polbh zloty unkru othethvise stated) 

Income tax 

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and defened tax. Current tax is the 
expected tax payable on the tayoblb income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially 
enacted at the balance sheet date, an%J any adjustment to tax payable m respect of previous years. 

Income tax is recognised in the &cane statement except when it relates to items recognised 
directly in equity, in which case it isl also mpimd in equity. 
Deferred tax is provided in full us4g the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary 
differences between the Canying aounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes 
and the amounts used for taxation $urposes. However, Ute d e f e d  tax is not accounted for if it 
arises form initial recognition of m asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 
combination that at the time of th transrsCtion &kts  neither mounting nor taxable profit and 
loss. Deferred tax is determined us’ g tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted by the balance she&& d am expscted to apply when the related d s f c l r e d  tax- is 
realized OT the deferred tax liability is seltkd. No taxable temporary di@mnces are recognized on 
the initial recopition of goodwill. I 

D e f e d  tax assets are recognized t’  the extent that it is probable that firture taxable profit will be 
available against which the tempon$ diaerences can be utilized. 

4 
Deferred tax is provided on 
associates, except where the 
Group and it is probablt that 

differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and 
reversal of the tiemporary diffmce is controllad by the 
diffmce will not reverse in the foreseeable kture. 

(w) Derivntive financial imtdmemts 
The Group periodically uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign 
exchange rate risks arising from( opmtional and financing activities. Derivative financial 
instruments are recognised initially ht fair value and subsequently rememred at their fair value. 
Derivatives used by the Group do dot qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of 
any derivative instruments that do not qualiQ for hedge accounting are reoognised immediately 
in the income statement. 
As at the balance sheet dates, the Gqoup did not have any derivative financial instruments. 

(x) Segment reporting 
A business segment is a group of @ets and openttions engaged in providing products or services 
that are subject to risks and retumd that am diffarent h m  those of other business segments, A 
geographical segment is engaged id providing products or services within a particular economic 
environment that are subject to r$ks and returns that are different from those of segments 
operating in other economic enviro 

(y) 

Noncurrent assets (or disposal gr ups) are dwsified as assets held for sale and stated at the 

principally through a sale bansactioh rapher than through ti continuing use. 

1 

T”** 
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale 

lower of canying amount and fair % alue less costs to sell if their carrying amount is recoveted 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
(b thaiusands sf Polrh zloty unless oth& stated) 

(2) 

A business combination i 
combination m which all of 
same party OT parties both 
transitory. This business corn 
method is used there are no 
rocognised. 

I 

Business combimtions in+oMng entities under mmmon control 
iea or businesses under common control is a business 
ng entities or businesses ultimately are controlled by the 
after the business combination, and that control is not 
mopisad wing pooling of interest method. When this 
adjustments to assets and liabitities and no goodwill is , 

2 Corrections 

a) Correction of accounting treatment for lease arrangement 
In 2006, the G m p  concluded that e leasing contract for land and building related to one of the 
restaurants located in the Czech R ublic was inappropriately accounted for in previous years as 
an -rating lease. According to U S  17 Lapres, the above mentioned arrangement meets the 

tern. In order to ensure comparability of the 
criteria of finance 1 The arrangement transfers ownership of 

ant hm been made to the canmlidated balance 
flow and to the notes to the consolidaed 
prssent the transaction as if it has been 

period presented. Adjustment to 
to the change in the accounting treatment ofthe 

J 
sheet, consolihted 
financial stWmmts. The 

previously published financial 
lease m g e m e n t  is p e n t a d  I 

Adjustment to the consolidate 
Increase ufdimct depreciation (restaurant expenses) 
Diectease of occupancy expen 
Irrcme of f m w  COS~S 

Ddcrarrsa o? income tax 
Decrease of profit for the period 

Change of basic and diluted earnin4 per share 

Adjustment to the consolidated bat 1- ce sheet: 

(cost - 3 482 WLN, accumulated d preciation - 532 TPLN (Note 10) 
Increase of tangible fixed as& 

Increase of accumulated deficit , 
Decrease oftranslation reserve : 
Increase of finance lease liabilities 

4 

0 

1 Jandary 
abos 

I 
I 

Piicewaterhw'BeCoopert 
Ac~pinta.nts N.V. 
for identifwtion purposes only I Rotterdam ia9 
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AmRcat Holdings N.V. 

Adjust~nemt to the Oonsolidated bdt4w sheet: 
Increase afmgible fixed ass@ 
(cost - 3 450 TPLM, erccumulatad dbprcciation - 667 TPLN (Note 10) 
Increase oifdefirred  ax llss~t 
Increase ofaccumututed deficit 

Decrwtseoftrmslrsti;oniedarve 
I m  OriIntmxi leags liabllfdes @art term portion: 45 TPN, long term portion: 
3 237 TPLN (Nota 26 1 

! 

Incnase oftosli of the curr0nt year , 

2 783 
10 

440 
85 

(36) 

(3 282) 

The above pmsented ad,, 
data of the ssepnant for tha 
restated. 
b) Correction of accounting trcament of marketing wenuem (presentation) 

the gaopphioal segment 'Czech Republic'. Financial 
period for the purpose of presuntation m Note 3 was 

The Group presented in previous peFod revmucs fiom marketing services related to one supplier 
of bevmges as a deductiun of . T~WRJ suivices am in S U ~ G C  menw of 
the oroup 85 services arc (cixpomre of tradamark, etc) and should not 
deduct marketing ofiaagsd in the Qurtdnt year the paentation of 
that Servicus in a muh, previously mporkd mvenues ahd 
marksting expenses inc 

3 Segmentreporting 

GSOgrcrPhical 

Even though the Group is basiq its business activities operate mainly 
in two gm~phid  mu, m h  Republic. 
The division of OKHIp's rrrv guogmphid ss&meab is based on the geographical 

b a d  on the gmgraphied location ofdw ItssBts. 

The b u p ' s  m t a u m t  opGsations one busmess segment given tb8 similar nature of 
 product^, ewers, business risks 
Geol6yaphiasll acagment data as st 4 k# the twelve months cndcd 31 Deccmber 2006 and 
comparable period ended 3 1 Docam.btar 2005 is as follows: 

Initialled on behaii of 
Pricewa terhouseCooperr. 
Accountants N.V. 
for identification purposes only 
Rotterdam ~, 79 
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I 

I 

I 

CWh I 
Poland Rep b I i c U m  Totbl 

435 718 172 247 - - 21361 629326 - .I 

32638 12984 (1 127) 44495 
8 6?l 

(4 845) 
637 - 637 

(10 314) 
38 583 

208200 90921 
1221 - - 

55636 20266 

26377 10751 
5 143 663 

55069 19422 
61 1 1455 
369 - 
91 

265 
- 

1 1 1  

- 299121 
- 1221 

20647 20 7 
+@ 

87223 87 3 
357 37485 
302 61M - 74491 
174 224 - 3ob 

110 201 - 376 



AmRsst IGoMInga N.V. 

2095 
Revenue from exbsmal cusOomers 
Inter-segment revenue 

Operating pWsegment resutt 
Finance income 
Finarm cost 
Share of profst of associates (Note 3 1) 
Income tax 
Profit for the period 

Segment ltabifitis 
Unalba td  corporats liabilities 
Consolidated total liabilities 

Depreciation (Mote 10) 
Amortization (Note 11) 
Capital investments (Note 10,11,12 
Impairment of fixed msats (Note 
bpirmellt ofnon-current assets he$ for d e  
(Note 10) 
Impairment of inventories 
Impairment of trade receivables (Nod 15) 

Czach 
Poland Republic Unallocated 

363) 002 - 
16 469 

459 

139 808 - 
9 583 

181 864 74160 
574 - - 

43 179 - 

22 091 
3 289 
25 691 
626 

2 107 

434 
1815 

20 751 - 

8 543 
528 

18 503 

- 
119 

Totil 

- 499810 - - 
(2 754) 23 298 

1351 
(9 769) 

459 
6 772 
22 127 

- 256024 - 574 
32343 32343 

288 94(1 

- 639M 
101 921 101 921 

165 85‘1 

- 30634 - 3817 - 44 194 
626 

2 107 

431 
1934 

Capital invastrnent comprises 
mmgible assets (Note 1 1) 

sf property, p h t  and equipment (Note lo), additions of 
s of goodwill (Note 12). 

The unallocated column relates ob wrporate wets, liabilities (mainly borrowings) and 
tramactions of AmRest Holdings N. ., A m h t  Ukdm taw., corporate assets and liabilities of 
American R m m € s  Kfl. and m ts whthg to i n m e  tax. 

Comparative financial data of the ‘ C b h  Republic’ segmen$ ,m mstat,Mi is m&r to present the 
adjustment to the lease anangemant described in Note 2. 

4 Acqatitioe of subsldiarfes and h i a t c s  

-ition Qf&n?ucku &stem && 

4 
I 

1 

On 30 June 2006 the Group 
System Ktt. (current name: 
Following the transkction, the 
restaurants in Hungary. Rum 
company. The purchase price 
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The transactian marked e AmRest Group's market position 
in the Central and 

The fair value of assets acquired a@ liabilities assumed was as follows (in thousands of Polish 

of ths GrQup's strategy. 

zloty): 

Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 
Other non-cmnt assets 
Inventories 
Trade and other receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
other assds 
TFade and othw payables 
Net assets acquired 
Goodwill (Note 12) 

Cash paid on acquisition 
Not ash and cash equivalents "I sulisidiary acqu..ed 
Cash d o w  on acquisition 

5 579 
712 
28 1 

1 390 
358 
83 5 
71 

(6 822) 
2 404 

I8 666 

21 070 
0 

20 435 

Goadwill on the aquis 

restawrrnt operations, the Group 
contract and ae not individual 
manrioned items do not meet 
mincludsdmtheamount 
arxapdancewithfignchise 
Poland and the Czech Republic. 
Acquisition of American Restaurant& Kft. did not involve any additional significant costs. 

Ifthe aqukitbn presentsd above 
have baen 648 765 TPLN, and 

mainly to the beneh of getttng 
4 x m s S t o t h e h ~  

occunsdon 1 Jauuary2006, sstimated Groupmvenuewould 
docatiions would. have been 37 978 TPLN. 'Ibese l ~ m o ~ t s  

changed its name to American Restaurants Kft. 

&@,&&&Doris 2006 Sn I 0.0. I bv sub8 id& - American Restau rants SO. z 0.0. 

On October 250th 2006 dpe 
office m wrasaw, Poland. 
which will be used fbr openin% 
moussnds of Polish zloty): 

1 W o  of shares of Doris 2006 Sp. z 0.0. with registeed 

tirir vah#s of net assets acquired is as hllows (in 

Intangible assets (favourable lease cdntracts) 495 

Cash paid on acquisition 495 

Cash outflow on acquisition 495 
Net cash and cash equivalents in sublidiary acquired 

DORIS 2006 Sp. z 0.0. did not to operate before the yearend. Therefore, the hypothetical 
acquisition on 1 January 2006 woul have no im 

73 
d 
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Nom to the Consolidated Financial ?itatcments 
(la tllorsads of Polbb zloty unler otbckvise statad) 

other txansact ions 
l n n i  

On Eebmaq 3 rd 2006, the Groq 
Following the acquisition, the (3~ 
35% as at 3 1 December ZOOS), . 

5 Operating expenses 

lcquired further 10% of sham in SCM sp. z 0.0. (Note 31). 
p inoreased its equity interest in SCM to 45% (cornpad to 

2006 2005 

Depreciation (Note 10) 
Amortisation (Note 11) 
Food and materials 
Utilities 
External services 
payroll 
Social s e d t y  and other employee 

Marketingaxgenses I I ’ :  

Continuing fnnchise fees 

OpePatins 1- C - u P y  “1.9Tj 

Insurance 
Business travel 
Onerous contracts 1 

I Initial public offering expenses 
Other 

Total restaurant expenms 

Initial public offering expenses ’ 

37 485 30 634 
6 108 3 817 

225 996 177 242 
22 454 16 906 
39 111 36494 I 

111 513 86776 1 
26 475 18740 I 
45 040 40317 i 

30 590 25 462 
37 300 29 700 

1127 2 181 
2 355 1 682 

905 1 668 
- 1937 

2 171 1970 I 

588 630 475526 ~ 

543 924 434930 I 
3 416 2710 

41 290 35949 ~ - ~ 1937 j 
588 630 475 526 



AmRest Holdlngs N.V. 

Notes to the ColusoUdrted ~insnefa~ btatements 
(In thausaada otPolbh zloty unless othe#wlre utated) 

Impairment costs are as follows: 

Impairment of inventory (Note 14) I 
Impairment of receivables (Note 15) 
Total impairment of current assets (working capital) 

Impairment of assets held for sale I 

Impairment of property, plant and r/quipmcnt (NNe 10) .I I 

Total impairment of non-current assets I 

Total 

2006 
I 

200s 

I 
20 1 431 
3 76 193iQ 
577 2 36$ 

300 2 107 
2 240 626 
2 540 2 733 

3 117 5 101 
, a  4- 

Impairment losses recognid in 2006 and 2005 relata primarily to property, pldt  and ebuip a &fit 
of underperforming restamts w re either a decision has been made to olose the re-- or 
the mstaurant assets or a portion 1” of the assets (primarily leasehold improvements), w m  not 
considered to be recovemble b d j o n  arn analysis of fitwe estimated discounted a s h  flows. The 
estimates of tecoverable amount +re basad on the restmrsmts value in use, determined using a 
discount rate of approximatety 10,9!!!. 

6 Other operating income 

Management fee 
Sublease income (Note 27) 
Marketing revenues 
Other operating income 

7 Finance income 

Interest income 
Foraign exchange gain, net 
Waiver of lm &om r e k d  pwty &ote 32) 
OWer 

2006 2Op5 

3 13 
2095 
1696 

2 0  gr 1 
1089 

1401 2 7B1 
5 505 6 @6 

I 

I 

2006 20b5 

458 
4 726 
3 3% 

743 
I -  

- 
91 608 

8 671 1351 
I 

’ 75 



I 

Interest expense 
Foreign exchange hss, net 
Other 

1 

9 Taxation 

I' 

2oQ-6 2&S 
1 

(4 035) (6 472) - (1 837) 
(812) (1 4 0 )  

(4 847) (9 769) 

I 

2006 20bS 

(8 613) 9150 
I1 701) 5 812 I 

(10 314) 6 7t(z 

m 29.6% 1 19% 24% 
2805 31.5% I 19% 26% 

16% 
Nfa 

30% 
20% 

2006 
2005 

29.6% 1wo 24% 
3 i .S% i9% 24% 

1 6% 
N/a 

20% 
20% 

I 

Profit before tax 48 956 d 3 9  



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial &atemeats 
(in thousands of Polish zloty ulrlaw oh& stated) 

The weighted average applicable 
caused by a change in the 

Deferred income tax asstts and 
offset current tax assets against 
to the same fiscal authority. The 

rate was 19,2% (31.12.2005: 44,3%). The decrease was 
of the Group's subsidiaries in the respective countries. 

es am offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 
when the deferred income taxes relate 

2006 2005 
Deferred tax asset 

Deferred tax asset to be recoveed after more than 12 months 
Deferred tax asset to be rcrcovede.d within 12 months 

Deferred tax liability 
Deferred tax liability to be recopred after more than 12 months 
Deferred tax liability to be recopered within 12 months 

350 8 057 
8 986 3 483 
9 336 11 b40 

I 

40 760 
720 503 
760 1 b63 

Temporary differences after offsepg included in the calculation of deferred tax asset &nd 
liability are as follows: 

Tangible fixed assets and intangibl@ 
Receivables 
Provisions and other write downs 
Tax losses 
Other differences 

Deferred tax asset Defened tax liability 
31.12.2006 31.122005 31.12.2006 31.122b05 

6 867 5 760 760 1263 
5.40 (41) .. 
423 1 229 
899 4 605 
607 (13) - - 

9336 11 540 760 1 263 

Temporary differences before offsetting are as follows: 
Defensd tax asset Deferred tax liability 1 

31.12.2006 31.122005 31.12.2006 31.122005 
6 355 5 760 1182 I263 Tangible fixed assets 

Receivables ) 
Frovisions and other write downs 
Tax losses 
Other differences 

540 492 - 533 
423 1 229 - - 
899 4 605 - - 

1 629 - 88 13 
9 846 12086 1270 1 809 

Tax losses carried forward as at 3 1 December 2006 m as follows: 

Poland 
Czech Republic 
The Netherlands 
Hungary 
Ukraine 

5 SB8 
3 385 
2 491 
7 358 
19p3 



A m h t  Holdings N.V. 

Year of expiry Tax loss+s total value Tax losses included in 
& f e d  tax asset 

Tax losses for which 
no deferred tax a$set 

was ncognised 

7 467 4 730 2 737 
3 123 3 123 
1812 1812 
2 107 - 2 107 

107 - 107 

- 2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
201 1 

Without limits 6 059 - 6 059 
il 20 675 4 730 15 945 

a d&md tax asset relating to 4 730 TPLN of 
to “Pbpblrtod” segcnmt, bawd 011 its farecas& of 

g m l - s o a n y m r  

1 
1 

1 

At 3 1 December 2006, the Group 
the above tax loss carry forwards 
subla fistwe t#uE&b inoorne ova 
has been rec~gnizad with mqwt  
lwmd m d w ,  than P0land, 
regarding *eit mat 
dsfiecrsdtmcsmtin 

c a ~ y  f o m d  period. No 

Ndwrianbs and Ukraine) 

I 



AmRest Holdimgs N.V. 

10 Pmoparty, pbmt and eqrtlipmeqt 
I 

Movements in property, p h t  and uipment in 2006 and 2005 can be presented as follows: 

~ d i m c s ~  
7 

lQdElprant other Assets 

d0vslePment-k tmgibk lmdor 
2806 !Lmd WaEI ewbmlt Vohicle, ssscts cons~Otion Total 

AcquMtbn coot 
Balance at 31/12/2005 1,124 225856 119480 688 5338 6354 358850 
Reclassification of operating 
leasstofinanwW(Note3) 788 2612 50 - 3450 
Balastceat l /1/2066(res~ 1-913 22847% l l 9 m  688 5388 6354 368300 

' - 5802 13028 111 1305 34199 54445 
Aciquisitians (Note 4) 
Additions 

- - 

: - 3565 1W 113 837 - 5 4 7 9  

Dispmals - (447'7) (1 516) (210) (846) (1 287) (8336) 
T~wudbs bcawsan groups - 14904 906 226 2564 (18600) - 
Tms€W go assets held for 

&change rate differems j 38 2774 2489 
dab(rbt@ 13) (1404) 01n1 - - - - (4 176) 

12 187 217 $717 
Balance at 31/12/2006 &46 247 874 135 451 940 9 435 20 883 415 529 

I 

Accumulated depreciafion 

Reclassification of operating 
Balance at 31/12/2005 - 104023 72209 523 3 559 - 180314 

- - lease to finance lease (Note 3) , - 620 47 - 667 
Balanoe at 1/1/2006 (restated) - 104643 72209 523 3606 - 180981 
Additions 
Disposals 
T m h  to assets held for 
sasale 
Exchange rate dWwences 
B a h  at 31/12/2QO6 

Impairment bres  
Balance at 1/1/2006 
Additions 
Decreases 
Transfers bctwm groups 
Exchange rate differences 
Balance at 3 1/12/2006 

Net book value 1/1/2006 
Net book value 31/12p12006 

- 23477 12844 143 1021 - 31485 
- (2 442) (W (154) (446) - (3 pS8) ' - (312) - (315) 
- 1162 1481 6 133 - z782 

. - 126525 85688 518 4314 - 214845 

- - - 

1 

- - 1728 7 178 - 5450 
- 2217 23 - 3,240 - 

I - (2 174) .. - (521) (2 495) 
32 - (32) 

I - - - 
- - 16 14 10 16 56 

1' I - 5541 14 33 1 191 6,779 

12 118385; 47271 165 1782 4626 174141 
ecId 1158tM 49749 422 5088 19692 1917Q5 

1 -  
- 

1 r l!-'-%T r?TT< 

$ a ' 'Krs p y m  
A.-- - 

lnitiallad on beha# of 
PdcewaterhouseCoowa 
Ac~%untants N.V. . 
for identification purposes nnlv 1 Rotterdam 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

2005 

Acquisition cotst I 

B h c e  at 3 l/lU2oO4 1310 212672 108226 860 
796 2636 - - 50 - 3482 Rwbsifkaticm of 

Balmeat 1 / 1 ~ 5  (mtatd) 4 106 215 3010 108 226 860 5 685 9 249 3411 434 
Acquisition ' - 6012 1428 22 242 87 f7791 
Additional additions - 8072 9308 - 286 16529 3k595 
JX3jXSalS - (6425) (4326) (194) (I 328) (1 710) (13983) 
T--gFplrps I - 12473 4800 - 503 (17 776) , .I 

Trfmfbrs to am0Q hQu for 

lease bo tmana lsdlsa (Note 3) 

srrla mota 19) 

5635 9249 337952 

- - (6 749) 
Exchange rate difkences kii) (396) (356) - - (25) jC788) 
Balance as 31/12/2005 11912 22847% 119430 688 5388 6354 36#300 

I 

A c s u n M  deprechtioa 
Bal- at 3 l/WW4 1 - 91 156 64980 490 4037 - 160663 
RB0l;asSlifiWon ohp6ming - 494 - - 38 - 532 
lase to flnancc lease (Note 3) 
Balance at 1/1/2005 (res#d) - 91 650 64980 498 4075 - 161 195 
Additions 1 - 18424 11793 91 326 - 30634 
Disposals - (3 869) (4344) (58) (795) - (9066) 
Translks to assets held for 
sal8 

B z r b  at 3 lllu2005 - 104643 72209 523 3606 * 18e981 
Ex~hangc rate diffmnces - (136) (220) - (. - (356) 

I 
I 

I 
4 - (1 426) .. - - (1 426) 

Balance at 1/1/2005 ' 
Additions 
Disposals 
Exchange rate differences - 
Balance at 3 lllU2005 - 
Net book vdne 1/U2W 
Net biwk wllla 31/12/2085 

- 2 - 1 

- 5450 - - - 1728 $178 

106 116996. 43246 370 1610 7520 171848 
P12 1183115 47iZ7l 165 1782 46% 176141 

. -. 
1 

80 



AmRsst Holdings N.V. 

(in tbourrnds o f  Psli34 doty ua1481 

Property, plant and equipment dented below Comprise items under finlusGe base, where the 
Group is the lessee: I 

I Other 
Land Buildings mgible  TOW 

assets 

827 2 738 53 3618 - 787 53 840 
827 1951 - 2 7 3 l  

I 

7R 2 613 50 3 451 

(67 1) (2 71 1) 

1411 (2 71 1) 

to 164 142 TPLN. 

Depmiattion expense has b n  
peaid: 28248 TPLN) ad jn 
(previeus m: 2 3 86 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
(in thousands of Polish zloty urnless othWdm stntsd) 

11 Other intangible w e b  

Intangible as& movements in 2006 p d  2005 can be pmmted as follows: 

Rights to asc 
Pizzs Hut and Other intangible 

2006 Tmdcmarks Favourable leases KFC trademarks assets Total 

8 389 
1 076 - - 

14 851 
89 

1280 
(193) 

32 421 
1 207 
1 s21 
(660) 

Acquisition cost 
Balance at 1/1/2006 
Acquisitions (Note 4) 
Additions 
Disposals 
Exchange rate differences I 11 288 50 349 
Balance at 3 1/12/2006 - 9 465 16 315 9 058 34 838 

.. 

Accumulated amortisation 
Balance at 1/1/2006 ' 39 1377 9 642 4 979 16 037 
Additions 69 2 861 1814 1364 6 108 

(119) (422) 
36 j 85 - 4 238 11 410 6 260 21 808 

Exehange rate differences 
Balance at 3 1 / 12/2006 

(193) 
147 

DiSpOSdS (1 10) 
1 2  

Impairment losses 
Balance at 1/1/2006 .I - 104 104 
Additions - - - 

(4) 
1 

Disposals (4) 
Exchange rate differences 1 
Balance at 31/12/2006 - - 101 - 101 

- - 
- - - 

Net book value 1/1/2006 299 7 012 5 105 3 864 16 280 
Net book value 31/12/2006 I .. 5 227 4 $04 2 798 12 829 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Nota to the ConsoIi&€ed 
(in t h o ~ s ~ d i  of Polish zlety 

Acqubitbn cost 
Balance at 1/1/2005 - - 13 346 5 962 19 308 
Acquisitions (Note 4) 342 8 389 - - 8 731 

- 1 743 3 037 4 780 Additions 
Disposals I Exdrmge rate differences : (4) - (52) (14) (70) 

I ' l  I : - (186) (142) (328) 

I Balance ttt 3 1/12/2005 I 338 8 389 14 851 8 843 32 421 

I *  . : L  ' 
Acauiau &rrmorihtio~~ 
Balance at 1/1/2005 - . 8 008 4444 12 452 
Additions 40 1377 1837 563 3 1817 - (207) - t25) 
DtspW (1 88) (1% 
EXdmnge rettw differences (1) (15) (9) 
Bakm t 3 11 1 u02005 1 39 1377 3 642 4 979 16 )937 

I 

104 - - 
ilO4 - 
, - 

- - Net book vaIoe 1/1/2005 1 5 234 1518 6 752 
3864 16 #%O Net book value 31/12/2OW 1 299 7 013 5 105 

There are no intangible assets o 
h o ~ d m  
3 493 TPLW) 
3 24 TPLN). I 

md capitalised by the Group. 
in 'remnant expenses' - 5 750 TPLN (previous period: 
i s m i v ~  (Gm ,ppnses - 358 TPLN (previous period: 

83 



AmRegt Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated 
(in tbopsaadr of FouIlh dog 

12 c h a d w 1 U  

I 

Changes En goodwill can be presented as follows: 
12 months 

ended 
12 months 

ended 
3 1/ 1U20O6 3 lllU2O05 

I 

Acquisition cost 
Balance at the beginning of period 
Additions (Note 4) 
Disposals 
Exchange rate differences 
Balance at the end of period 

4 765 
18 666 4 $19 

85 ($4) 
23 516 4 765 

4 763 - 
23 516 4 765 

Segment Repoptirag. 

The recoverable mount of the cas 
This oalculatical uses cash flow 
market dedopment 
10.9 per cent €ms bee 
assumed at th0 level of a b t  
period WBS 5%. Similar asd~um 
American Restamts Kft. See 

was based on a calculation of value in use. 
performance and expestations for the 
rc-t9x disoount rate of qproximately 

tagh flows, Budgeted gross margin was 
mM 4 .bo extrapolate cosh flow beyond budpt 

for t.e& for impaimmt of goodwill on acquisition of 

. -- 
I 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Wotes to the Consolidated Financial tements 
@a tholmnrdr of Polish zloty wiles& &he .jt: IO 6tatSa) 

13 Other non-cnrrent olesea 

summarized in the table below: 
The &et tron-cunent BssBbs at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005 are 

2006 2Q05 

Rent prepayments 
Rent deposits 
cather 

13 308 13 586 
3 869 5 117 

549 1 (947 
17 726 19 750 

14 Inventories 
Inventories at 3 1 December 
materials used in mstaund 

c r d  was 201 TPLN ( 

provisions munted to 795 
2905, rtspsetively. In 

December 2005 comprise primarily fDod and packaging 
nventories are stated net of provisions. The 
S94 TPLN as at 31 Deoember 2006 and 31 
iod endd 3 1 Dkcetllber 2OOld tithe momt of 
: 434 TPLN) (Note 3, 5). inwntolia with 

15 Trade and other receivably 

Trade receivables - third party 
Trade receivsbks - related paFtiss 
Other &as weirable I 

32) 

mer redvslbbs 
Provisions for receivables 

16 Other current assets 

Prepaid utilities 
Prepaid rent 
N p a i d  insurance 
Other 

, 2006 3005 

9 805 7 972 
93 1 a38 

3 853 6 $93 
1379 1'4148 

(3 670) 
(3 2$ I1 46EI 13 . 3  

I 

2006 2& 

2 420 377 
1 926 1 173 

293 7;15 
1337 115 
5 976 2 380 
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2006 2905 

14 344 26 377 
10 m7 s 198 
25 241 31 $75 

'b and cadi equivakmts 
summarized in the table blow 

at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005 are 

I 

Cash at bank 
Cash in hand 

assets (certificates of deposits) on October 2006 
on J~~ 2007. The balance shoet value of the 
intenst rate was 4,59%. The maximum exposure 

its b c e  sheet value. The Group considbrs 
as these instruments were issued by eompan~es 

for the amount of 9 954 
investment muunted to 

with a vay god  fltmcial position. t 
In January 2007 hald-to-matwlty ckd assets matured and the cash was rectived. 

Proceeds ffom thc sale of ps,pds 

Net book value of assets held 

Gain on dtsposal of assots held 

2006 2005 

5 000 - 
(2 918) k 

2 082 - 



AmRcst Hotdhgs N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated 
(in thoomnda olPolbL zkty 

20 Equity 

Share cupitd 

As stated in Note l(a), on 27 
trading on the Warsaw Stock 

As of 31 December 2006, th 
are filly paid. The authorized sh& m IS OOO 000 shares. 

2005 r. the shares of AmRest Holding N. V. commenced 

issued and outstanding. All issued shares 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and 
are entitled to one vote per sham at !&areholder meetings of the Company. 

Other reserves 
Other reserves of 6 19 1 TPLN r e l e  to the non-refimdable contribution, without the issuance of 
new shares, made by the shmholdets of the Group before the IPO on WSE. 
Trmrslotron Reserve 

The translation reserve comprises all fortign exchange difftrences arising from the translation of 
the financial statements of foraign * d o n s  of the Company into PLN. 

I 

21 Interest-bearing loans and bo 

December 2005: 
The table below presents interest- and bonowings at 31 December 2006 and 31 

Noa-current 2006 2065 

Bank loans 
Third party interest-bearing bomwiegs - YUMI (Note 32) 
Related party interest-bmridg borro*ngs - IRI (Note 32) 

72 140 77 381 
1332 
1 727 

72 140 80 44p 

- - 

Current 

Bank loans 

Baa k loans 

PLN 
PLN 
CZK 

BPH-PBK 

ABN Amro €3 

2006 260b 
1 

918 18 32! 
918 18 32) 

Effective interwt rate 2006 2002 
I 

662 ?4 
5,02 % 
3,42 % 

918 - 1 4 d  
24 774 

72 140 69 458 
73 OS8 95 702 

ts loans baring floating interest rates basad on PEUBOR 
bank Isms d inoarcsa rate risk is on a monthly basis 

87 
I 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

According to the loan agreem 
required to maintain certain ti 
index, (tEue ratio of net debt to 

to total assctsr). 

Please refer to Note 28 for details 
Loans from non-related parties 

to Bank N.V. dated 4 April 2005, the Group is 
s as specified in the agreement. Thew include net debt 
interest coverage and the balance $hwt structure (the 

equity lm net b g i b i e  assets and the net g d w i l l  

security pledged for the above loans. 

Effbctive interest rate 2006 2005 

USD YUM! I= 8.Wo 1332 

Loans from related partiw 
Effective h m s t  rate 2006 2Od5 

lwtwity of h g  tam loans as al 
below: 

Between 1-2 years 
Between 2-5 year 
Over 5 years 

8.00?4 

IRI was described in Note 32. 
1 727 

I mrrmkdt mtea for given types of loans. lbrefoxe fair value 
ignifhntiy ~~t from canying amounts. 

31 Dcccmk 2006 and 31 December 2005 are presented 

2006 2005 

13 741 38 071 
41 223 42 369 
17 176 - 
72 140 80 440 

borrowing facilities as at 31 December 2006 and 31 

2006 2005 

The Group has the following un 
D w d m r  260s: 

I 
FloatiIk$lWN - e x p h g  within one year - expiring rfber one year 

10 202 3 784 
23 831 29 342 
34 033 33 126 

22 Employee benefits I 

Employee benefa consist of long te+n smvice benefits and two share option plans. 
Long term service employee be- 4 

Inaccordanctwiththe 
jubilee payments for 1 

oris, ccrfain employees have the right to 
with the Group's employment regulatioas. 

80 after the completion of 
tousD1o0oaftwthe 

m u K a , F c  -4 7 - 

PricwaterhouwCoopers 
Acqounpts N.V 
for tdrr&datton purposes onlv 
Rotterdam 



AmRest Hotdings N.V. 

Notes to tlie Consolidated Fiarncial $tatemeats 
(in tbowaadr of Palish zloty unku &I- stated) 

nK Group has made an mmal af 3 TPLN fm the jubibe obligation as of 31 December 2 0 6  SMi 
791 TPW as of 31 Decembar 2005. 4 Actuarial ass-: discount rtrte: 7.7 and expected turnow 
WpWyeat.:40. I 

Stock option plan I 
The Plan was set up in 
Upon the Group's IPC3 on 27 
cash. Additionally all 
assumed responsibility 
PO). The value of liability in 

Stock option pkm 2 

cash. It raiated to the Group's key employees. 
was converted to settled in shares instead of 

assumed by ARC (Sea Note la). ARC 
with mployees (vested and not vested upon 

nt of 1 944 TPLN was transferred to the equity. 

In April 2005, the Group established an employee stock option plan for key employees, settled in 
shares. The total number which options arc panted is determined by the Board but 
cannot exceed 3% of the ding shares. In addition, the number of shares acquired'by 
employees Rom options emrc to 200,OoQ annually. Under the plan, the Company, 
upon prior Board approval, to dctamb among other matters, participatjng 
empiciyea, number grant date. The option price and the vesting pdod 
will $pxnl ly  be th ce at the optson grant date and carry eithsr a 3 or 5 year 
V@StiR$ period. The was approved by the Board of Dirtctors. The terms md 
conditions of the grants are as foll 

Eiml 
at 30 April 1999 
at 30 April 2000 
at 30 April 200 1 
at 30 April 2002 
at 30 April 2003 
at 30 April 2004 
Total 

b . 2  
At 30 April 2005 
At 30 April 2006 
Total 154300 - 

79300 Years,gnded,2wPaY= 
75000 1 Ysars,gradtd,2o%perY- 

6.4 10 years 
25.6 10 years 

16.0 10 ye=, 
16.0 loyearsl 
19.2 10 years 

25.6 10y-j 

24.0 
48.4 

10 yean 
1oyears' 



AmRest Holdkgs N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Flnencial btatements 
(in tbouramjs orpdisti zloty u n w  otlle+c stated) 

The number and weighted ave4e  exercise prices of share options for the year ended 31 
December 2006 and 3 1: December 005 are as follows: 

2005 
Numberof Numkof 

Outstanding beginning 
of the period PLN20.6 79300 203900 PLN 18.9 
Exercised during the 

Forfeited M i g  the 
period PLN 19.4 (29QO) (12560) 
Chanted during the 
period 
Outstanding, end of the 
psrid 
Exercisable at the end 
of the perid 

period PLN 18.3 - (9140) PLN18.5 

342 210 

- (13b310) 

PLN48.4 75000 - PLN24.2 79 300 

PLM 26.9 15 1 400 182 200 PLN 20.6 79300 203900 

PLN 20.4 15760 146660 PLN 19.5 - 146 773 

The fair v d w  of sewices 
to the Tdr wrlw of &am optbus 
mesad b a d  on a trinominal 
option (10 yam) is uwd as 
incorporated iM0 models. 

&am ojniom granted am m d  by reference 
estimate of lthe fair vdue of the services received is 

and Mmt&wlo model. The contraotual life of the 
into tEris model. Expectations of early exercise are 

Fair value of stock options and perfmanee partitipatioa plan units and related assumptions are 
summarized ~ I Q W  

Avenge fkir value at [ganr date 
Average h prbe at grant 
dUte/w of valuatim 
A v q e  ~xaro i se  priae 
Expected volarility (expressed as 
weighted average vobtility used 
in the modelling under the 
trinomial tree model)* 
Expected option life (exprowed ~ b )  

weighted a v q e  life used in the 
modelling under the trinomials tree 
model 
Expected dividenL (commencing 
2008) 
Risk frQe hmt rate (based on 
interbankinttngtmtw) 

Plan 2 
FLN 15.5 

PLN 48.3 

FLN 483 
3 1% 

18.8% 

4 . m  

Grented in the period &anted till the 
fiam 1/1/2(M9 to 3 1/12/2005 end of 2 0 4  

Plan 2 
E N  8.9 

PLN 25.7 

PLN 24.0 
4 0 9 0  

9.9 years 

18.8% 

4.5% 

Plan 1 
PLN 6.8 

n/a 

PLN 18.6 
40% 

7.0 years 

19.4% 

4.5% 

Plad 1 
PLN 4.6 

h/a 

PLN IS.6 
40% 

7.5 years 

I9.4?? 

5 . k  

-.-..-- 

PO 
I 
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Prior to 2006 the company 
options granted hfwe 2W 

c qudatlons on WSE and the axpected volatility for 

conditions associated 
with the share option p t s .  

Value of employee services 

23 PmVh&m 

2006 2005 

497 203 
497 103 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial $tatements 
(in tbauroadr of Polish zloty unlesa otkhvise ttrted) 

24 Other non-current Usbillties 
Other non-current liabilities comprfse mainly non-current portion (current portion - Note 25) of 
defend income from advertising $mites provided to one of the Group's suppliers (non-related 
party). The Group has received advance a cash remuneration of 750 TUSD for advertising 
services whioh are to be m d e  over 5 years period, starting 1 January 2006. Non-current 
portion of deferred income in reh 'on to that amounted to 1 521 TPLN and 2 027 TPLN at 31 
December 2006 and 3 1 December 4 005, respectively. 

25 Trade and other accounts payable 

Trade and other accounts payable balance at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005 is 
summarized in the table below: 

Accounts payable to third parties: 
Trade payables 
Uninvoiced rent and deliveries for restaurants 
Payables to employees 
Social insurance liability 
Other taxes payable 
Advance payment received for sale of premises 
Deposit received 

Accounts payable to related parties (Note 32) 
Accruals: 

Bonuses to employees 
Marketing services 
Unused holidays 
Professiofisll services 
M e r  

D e f d  income current portion (Note 24) 
Sacial Fund 
Other accounts payable to third parties 

1 
26 Finance lease liabilities 
Finance lease liabilities - present value of liability: 

No later than 1 year 
Later than 1 year, no later than 5 ye& 
Later than 5 years 

2006 2005 
60 947 46 341 
43 119 31 502 
7 428 5 133 
5 162 3 911 
3 447 2 378 
1711 2 265 

- 1000 
80 152 

3 404 1851 
7 335 4 667 
3 669 2 668 

I 362 939 
2 255 1015 

800 507 
48 1 532 

2 481 998 
75 448 54 896 

r 

49 45, 

2006 2bo5 
68 45 

413 172 
2 913 2 965 
3 394 3 $82 

32 
I 
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AmRest Holding N.V. 

Notes to tbe Consolidated Financial Qtatements 
(in thournnda of Pollsk zloty u n h  otherpb stated) 

Finance lease liabilities - minimd lease payments: 

No later ban 1 year 
~ a t e r  than 1 par, no later than 5 y& 
Later than 5 years 
Total minimum lease payments 
Future finance charges on finmce 
Resent value of financu lease 

2006 200s 
669 1211 

2 657 2 486 
5 972 5 802 
9 298 9 499 

(5  904) (6 217) 
3 394 3 282 

The above finance lease liabilities r i  : late to one contract - see Note 2 for details. 

27 Operating leases 
The Group has numerous non 
locations. Renal contracts 
yews, subwt to certain min 

Future minhum payments 
31 WeMbur 2005 are 8s follows: I 

lable operating leases, primarily for the mntal of restaurant 
locations am typica4ly concluded for a period of ten 

fw cancellation. 
Ilable operating leases at 3 1 December 2006 and 

2006 2005 

38 914 35 382 
142 434 117 $56 

No later than 1 year 
Later than S year, no later than 5 y e p  
Lnter than 5 years 107 925 97 190 
Total minimwn lease p a p n t s  289 273 250 128 

For numerous rata located in slhOs3ping malls) the rental fes am compassd 
of a fuced foe and a revenues of the m&wmt. The conthqpnt fee typicrplly 
represents 2.3% to 9% o Qmrathg 1- aqwm (divided &I Axed bnd 
contingent part) for the 12 drad 31 DBesmbcl.2006 and 2OO5 mspctivdy a r ~  as 
follaws: 

1 

i 2006 2005 
Fixedprut $oBtinjgent TotalI Fixedpart Contingat Total 

Czech Repubfic 
Hungary 
Poland 

1 896 
1 748 1445 303 - 

12 565 1 605 12 518 - 
18651 : 10471 29 122 20915 6814 27 729 
32661 ! 12379 4501M 31 607 8710 40 317 

The Group also is also a party of!sub.optratins leasss. Revenues I ,  fiom such contracts are as 
follows: , I  

- ! ''I: .' , ' - I I '  

2906 1 2005 

Czech Republic 

Poland 
Hwary  

83 ' - 
35 - 

1977 , 2 801 
2095 ! 2001 

1 
1 I '  I 93 
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AmRest Holdlap N.V. I 
Notw to the Consolidated 
(6n &eusandS of Polish defy 

As at 31 D e w r n k  2006 to minimum lease payments under non- 

28 Lsanwcurity 

Loans are secmd by variuw 
inventories - see Note 10 and 14 

of pledge and mortgage on tangible k e d  assets and 

29 Earninge per sham 

Basic and diluted earnings per orcliinary share for the twelve months ended 31 December 2006 
and 3 1 D w m b r  2005 qlculatbd w fallows: 

Basic earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share 

2006 2005 

38 642 22 111 

13 5OOOOO l O o o O O O O  

36 130 - 
12 238 671 

- 23876P1 

13 536 130 

2.86 1.78 
2,85 1.78 

I 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

12 months ended 3 1 
December 2006 

12 months endad 
3 1 December 2005 

At the beginning of the period 
Acquisition of s h a m  

At the end of the period 
share of p f i t  of associates 

574 
10 

80 
35 

673 459 
1221 574 

The Group’s investments in apsocipbcs, all of which m unlisted, and their main financial data are 
as follows: I 

I 
I 

33.33 

$3.33 
I 

I 
46.66 

17.33 
34.00 
45.00 

3 1 Decetnbr 2006 
Widwide Communication 
sarvw LLC USA 156 
GI&I Commmication Services 
sp, 2 0.0. in Iiildation Poland 41 

sp. 2 0.0 Poland 2 758 
Red 8 Communications Group 

2 410 

SCM Sp. t 0.0 pr P o p d  2 51% 

sp. Z 0.0. 

SynqgyM&*Pmm 

Synergy Marketing Partnsrs 8.t.o. C h 664 

82 

98 

2 664 19 525 

882 
653 
30 1 

10 458 
775 

4 602 

3 1 Dscrmbct 2005 
Worldwide Communication 
sorviocr LLC usn 265 
Global Communication Strvicas 
Sp. z 0.0. in liquidation Po@d 51 
synergy n4-g Palmers 
sp. z 0.0 Polkd 3 307 
Red 8 Conununicatians Group 

1594 T 655 
sp, z 0.0. 
Synergy Marketing Partners s.r.0. 
SCM sp. 2 0.0 Pol d 927 

91 230 357 33.33 

100 173 33.33 ‘3 I’ 3 100 19 844 126 a6.66 

51 1 
626 
19 1 

11 620 

1538 
. 538 

636 

17.33 
24.00 
35.00 

32 Retatedparticll 
Tmde and other receivables fmm Mated parties: 

3 1 Deamber 2006 3 1 December 2005 

mi Sp.2 0.0. 
American Retail Concepts I 
A m d m  Retail Systems Sp.zo.0. I 
Associates 

26 
11 

474 

8 
56 556 
93 1038 

PricewaterhouwCoopers 
Accountants N.V. 
for idcnr.kahon purposes only 
Rotterdam 

% 



Am- Holdhgs N.V. 

Nota to tbe Conwlidrtcd Flnr 
(In thcwands ofhlbb skty o r b  

Trade and other payables 

\ 

31 D~etnbcr2006 3 1 Dwcmbr 2045 
I 
! American Retail Concepts 556 ! -  

Arnerfclln Reail Systems 9p.z 0.0 i 161 1 to  
ASSOCiEltbs 1 2 687 1741 

3404 1811 

Limmpntd byrda@dpm%iasr I 

31DsCambsr2006 31 Documber 2005 

I 

12itUdlBSnded 1 
31 Dw3crJlba2006 31 

26 
84 

41 
21b 

1 2 m o n t h s d  12 months endad 
31 m b r 2 0 0 6  31Deoember2005 

- 8 705 
281 198 

3 116 4 86b 
1609 

113 193 
23 199 36 23$ 

MJM! - 119 - 119 i 



AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial tstements 
(b thousands of Polish zloty unless othemwiae stated) 

F 

ARC was fuunded by Donald M. Kendall, Sr., Donald M. Kendall, Jr. and Christian R 
Bisenbeiss, who serve as SuprvisajY Board members of the Group and Henry J. McGovern who 
is a Management Board member ahd the senior executive managing the operating businesses in 
Poland and the Czech Republic. 

The current ownership structure of ARC is shown in the table below: 

Donald M. Kendall, Sr. 30.00?! 
Donald M. Kendall, Jr. 18.25% 
Christian R. Eisenbeiss 28.36% 
Henry J. McBovem 22.49% 
David A. Bobilya 0.90ah 

Pdrcent Ownership 

The Group also received manag eat and consultmcy services provided by ARC on tl non- 
exclusive basis for the Group's C T h  and Polish operating entities. The major obligation is for 
ARC to provide management 
certain m c s m h  ofthe 
the Group's 
subsidiaries to ARC amounted td 3 1 16 TPLN and 4 862 TPLN for the period ended 3 1 
December 2006 and 3 1 Decamber 005, respectively. 
Additionally the h u p  recogni f as at 31 DeGember 2006 r. a provision for costs of 1 6 11 
TPLN relating to consuftancy servibs provided by ARC in 2006. 

Starting from 27 April 2005, ARC lssumed obligations for the settlement of Stock Option Plan 1 
(See Note 22). 

s including paying the saldes and certain other expense$ of 

fees paid by the Company and its 
team. These salaries and services am invoiwf to 

L4.&Lkm 
In addition to its ownership intereq in the Group, ARC conducts real estate operations through 
its wholly-owned subsidiary, h e  can Retail Syatems Sp.z 0.0. (ARS). "he Group leases three 
restaurant properties from ARS at arket rates consistent with the lease terms and condition$ in 
its restaurant Ieases with third parti ! s. 

As at 3 1 December 2006 r. the @@up recognised in its consolidated balance sheet prepayments 
for rent amounting to 10 500 TPLN (the same amount as at 3 1 December 2005) made on behalf 
of ARS in connection with ccmclud@ lease contracts for 4 restaurants for ten-year period starting 
in 2007 (See Note 13). 

The Group's offices in Wroclaw also located in a building owned by ARS and Metropolitan 
Properties International Sp. z 0.0. %P ( I), a company owned by Henry McGovem. 
The rent and other costs paid by tl)e Group and its subsidiaries to A M  was 1 609 TPLN and 
3 460 TPLN for the year ended 3 1 k e m b e r  2006 and 3 1 December 2005, respectively. 

The rent and other costs paid to thelwmpany owned by Henry McGovern - MPI was 28 1 TPLN 
and 198 TPLN for the year ended 3 1. December 2006 and 3 1 December 2006, respectively. 

The Group payables in respect of above mentioned transactions amounted to 161 TPLN and 
1 10 TPLN as at 3 1 December at 3 1 Deaember 2005, respectively. 
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AmIZapt Holdings N.V. 

F" 

Notes to the CsnsolMated FImancial 
(in thoutandm of PdW h t y  P N ~ S  otha 

Jc.u!ka 
YUMI ceased king a related 
Note 1). Tit1 27 April 200 
including loans and related f 
fees, professional fees and 
1 January to 27 April 2005 

on 27 April 2005 upon listing of the Group on WSE 
up had significant related party transactions with T!, 

ae as well as hfil franchise fds, Cantinuing hncbise 
e ofthe tmwwtmn * s within a period faam 

1 January 2005 - 27 A p d  2005 

Intangible assets purchased - righd to use Pizza Hut and KFC trademarks 
(initial fees) (see Note 1 (0) 
Continuing frrrnchise fees (see Not( 1 (0) 
Interest expense 
Total 

119 
8 705 

285 
9 Ib9 

On 1 April 2006, waiver of 1 
agtadmmb signad by IN and 

April 2006 ~ f a s  5 396 
3 OS9 TFLN (1 332 TPLN ( 
transfed its receivables reel& 
in current period a profit in the 

to the omup by IRI an 
I h w m h  2005, carrying amount of these Im *tis 

and 1 727 TPLN @I)). Sboptly bfure the waiver, &! 
loan to IWI. As loans wem waived, the Oroup mgnissd 
of 3 396 TPLN which was presented as financa intdme 

(See Note 7). 
&fQ&gg 

Wordwldg Communication Service8 LLS 
Wordwide Communication Servi+s LLS (WCS) Group provides marketing sorvices to the 
Group. Amounts billed by WC ta the Group (mainly though its subsidiary - Synqrgy 
Marketing Partners Sp. z 0.0.) yews ended 3 1 December 2006 and 3 1 Deoember 2005 

TPLN, respedvely. amounted to 17 919 VLN and 

As noted above, certain memb 
compensated CEireCtly by ARC wid 
m ~ ~ g ~ t  bad of AmRGst Hi 
follows: 

KS of key management (executive board members) are 
ARC rebilling the &oupp. Key mmapment (man bers of the 
Ildbgs N.V.) remuneration paid directly by the Group b as 

I 

Supervisory board members 

Includhg variable element 

Management board (executive 

Including variable element 

12 months 12 moFjths 

31 Dece eE endad 
31 December 

2006 2005 

120 

1206 1 't20 

, 98 
I 
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AmRest Holdings N.V. 

Notes to the Consolidated fimciallStabments 
(in tLeumudr of Polbb zloty 

Executivle board members 
pytnsnt expense which 
years emied 31 Decem 
executive bomd members am 

share option programs (see Note 21). Share tmsed 
rnsmgment amounted to 76 TPLN and 24 TPLN id the 
31 DBcwnbar 2005, respectively. Options granted to 

I Fair vdue of optbns upon e p ~ n  dace 

31 December 31 December 
2006 2005 

117000 l ~ ;OOO 

83 400 

9 18 300 PLN 

74 734 
763 300 FLN 

Management m m  
3282 "PLN md 3 3&3 TP mded 31 lhmtnber 2006 and 31 DeQsRlk 2bO5, 
mspetiwly. At 31 Dmmbw 2 w c r e s m ~ ~ ~ 8 o f i a m e t a m p ~ a y r r a s .  I 

33 Critical accounting es 

and are based on h i s t d  expwience pnd 
tbt am belioved to be reasonable undo$ the 

e futuFe. The resulting accounting 
actual results. The estimates and 

chk of uuuhg a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
mostly to goodwill impairment, 

assumptions that have a 

and defomd tax. 

Estimated impairment of goomVill I 

The Group tests annually wh 
accounting policy presented 
been determined b 
mmgnised in relation to 
~WO change of discount 
cashflow, would not 

The goodwill additions 
12) wera tested for impa 

&timated 
See Note 10 for details 
Estimated depreciation rates I 

impairment, in accotylance with the 
ounts of &-generating units Have 
Note 12). No impairment pas 

31 Deoernber 2006 and 31 Dacamber 2QOS. $'he 
10,996 to 12%) or the 1Wo change of operating 

to acquisition of Kentucky System Kft (See Note 4 and 
h e m &  2006. 

The increase of avwage useful liv by lWo would result in a decrease of depreciation expehse 
for the year ended 3 1 Deccmbar by approximately 3 200 TPLN. 
Provisions 
Uncertainty and estimates described in Note 23. ..- 

1n:tialled 011 behalf ot 
PricewixerhouseCoopleo 
Accountants N.V 7- for Rotterdam tckfltiiiiation purposes onb - 



AmRest Xoldtnp N.V. 

Nota to the Consolidstsd Fiarrne 
(In tlnmaads 03 Pobb zloty unW 

D e f m d  taws 

U n w f a W s  and judgments in$d tax computation relate mostly to the recognition of 
dtftned tax tiset on tax losses forward. See Note 9 for details. 

Judga?ents 1 
The most critical judgmmts 
of defend ttoc asset on tnx 

classification - see Note If, 2,26,27 and mgnition 

1 
1 

34 Financinl riakan 
The Group's sctivities 
and inturnst rate Fisk), 
management p r o g r a m  
potmts  &vase apfbcts on 
Risk management is carried out under pollcia approved by the Board of Directors. 

of financial risks: market risk (including currency 
credit risk. The Group's o\Ferall aisk 

ial markets and seeks to minimize 

ts, recciv&les and held-to-maturity financial assets T ote 
Financial instrumants that ly subject the G m p  to Concentrations of credit risk 
principally of cash and cltsh 
18). The Gmp places its cash equivalents in financial itratItptions with M@ crgdit 
ratinge. "hem are no sign mmtreths of d i t  risk with respect to trade and d e r  
reosivables u sales are prhudy made in asla or via mqjor credit card. Maximum amount 
exposd to d i t  risk is 20 265 TP ll , N. 
Interest mte risk 

at 3 1 b m k  2006 ths exposure 10 interest mtc cash flow risk is not hedged. 
Foreign currency risk 

Tb Oroup's -Wings typically bear interest rates ( ~ a e  Note 21). AS 

us m n c y  exposum, 

net investments in fore$gn 
, Foreign exchange risk arises firom 

a siignifbmt portion ofthe Group's ra%taurant lease$ is 
ratts. Although &e Group seeks where pssible to a p e  

be indexed to e m  or US dollar 

things, the Group aims to 
, however, permanent changes 
consolidated earnings. 

the Czech and Hungary subsidiaries, 

primarily with respect 
htum cormnercid tnrn 
option&. In addition, 
indexed to US dollar or 

in the foreign exchange and 
The Group has certain investm 
whose net assets are exposed to 
The Group does not use derivativ 

Liqukiify risk 
masanable scale to manage currency risk. 

Prudent liquidity risk 
the availability of 

maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and 
m w n t  of committad credit faoilities. 



I 
Fa& value offianciail insmmentq 

ckrl instruments fbr which it is practicable to estimate such 
value am bUows: 

Cash snd cash equivalents, hoct-term bank dqosits and short-term bank credits. The 
canying mounts appdmate air value h u s t  ofthe short maturity of these instrumerrts. 

Trade accounts receivable, t aamunts receivable, accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities. The canying amou& approximate fair value because of the short-term natulr: of 
these instnrments. 

s md bornwings, "he canying amounts approximate fair 
of the reW inbmst rates, which are not substantially 

of the Mr vdues ofthe * 1 

Non-current i 

r 
t 

.. 
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AmRest Holdings N.V. 
Company Financial Stdtements as at and for the twelve months 

ended 31 December 2006 
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Net uw viluc 

I 
2 

3 
4 

5 

I 

6 

x1,ooo x l , w o  

55.48 43.111 
. I  

s 5 . a  ' 42.382 

59 90 
59 90 

29 195 
112 

29 507 

5s.4991 

1.172 

41.965 

621 

3.3% 

r1,m x1,ooo 
I 

10.069 I 
2.298 

12.367 



AniRest Holdings N V. 
Company Financial Staiemcntr 
For the year ended II December 2006 
Notes tu the annual accounts 

A condcnscd company income statement is  presented in accordance with Section 402 of Book 20f thc Netherlands Civil Code. 
Thc financial statements are presented iii CS Dollars rounded to the nearest thousand. Due to the fact that the Company valucs its subsidlanes at net equity d u e  (see below accountiiig puliuies 
for finuncial fixed assets), items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are mcarurcd using thc functional ciirrency which i s  the currency of ihc priiiiary rcviiomic 
environment in which the entity operates. Functional currency o f  the Polish operations is  the Polisli Zloty (I'LN). thc functional currency of the Czech opcratioiis i s  tlic Ciccli Ciawii (CZK). 
while the functional currency o f  the Hungarian operations i s  thc Hungarian Foritit (HUF). 

Rasis of uresentutioii 
The company annual accounts have been drawn up iii accordance with Dutch GAAP (Pan 9 o f  Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code). 
In doing so. the compmy made USC of thc possibility to apply the accounting policies used in the consolidated financial statements to the 
company linaiicial stntcmcnts. as provided in Section 362 (8) of Book 2 of the Nelherlands Civil Code. 

'I'he accounting policics in the cnmpany financial statemcnts nrc the same as those applied in the consolidated financial statements 
The policius stalcd in the consolidated financinl statements arc applied. unless stated otltcrwise 

If not specifically stated otherwise, cxccpt for sharcs in  subsidiaries. BSSCU and liabilities arc stated at the mitouiits at which h e y  were acquired or incurred. 
The principles o f  valuation and determination of result rcniain unchanged compared to tlic prior year. 
These financinl statemcmts arc prepared on 8 going concern basis. 

Flnnncial axed assets 
T h e  Company values i ts  subsidiaries at net equity value. Profits made and losses incurred by 
these entities will be reflected in the Company's profit and loss account and equity trnnsaciion directly in  equity 
Nrt a s s t  value i s  calculated using the accounting policies applied for consolidated financial rtaterncnls (EU IFRS) 
Subsidiaries interests with an equity deficit arc carried at nil. 
A provision is  formed if and when tlic Company is fully or panially liable for the debts 
of I)ie subsiddiaries ititcr~st, or hus the firm intention to allow the subsidairics interest to pay its debts. 

I 



AmResl Holdings N.V. 
Canpany Fininciil S lucmnt i  
For the year ended 3 I December 2006 
Notsr to the annual accounts (continued) 

31 December 2006 31 Dcumbtr  ZOOS 

xl.MM x 1,000 
€u!&uka 

1 Shares In rubildiarier 
&am 
American Rcstaur~nts Sp.z.0.0. 
American RcstaurPnts 6.r.o. 

Qmcd 
RQmil& - 
WrOClaw, Poland 100% (loo%) 
Prague. Czcch Republic l o O % ( l ~ )  

The Company valued its participations at net quily value. Pro& made and losses incurred by the%. entities 
are reflected in the profit and loss account. 

The ncgativc net equity value of Amencan Restaurants s.r.0. 
has been deducted from the loan and i n t m t  receivable from h t  subsidiary. For the surplus of the negative 
net equity value a provision has been made. 

Movements in the inlnrsu in American Restaurants Sp.z 0.0. (xl.Oo0) have been LI follows: 
Balance as PM I January (previously reported) 
e) comction for presentation accelerated amortization for Czech restaurants (note 7) 
Balance 01 per I Janwry (adjusted) 
Acquisitionrlconmbutions 
S h m  in result 
SOP 
Translation 
Decrease provision (rcccivmblc from) subsidiary 
Balance IM per 3 I December 

Movements in the interests in American Restaurants S.r.0. (~1.000) have been LI follows: 
Balance as per I January @revioUaly reported) 
a) wrrcction for acwunting bcatment for ICMC mangement (note 7) 
b) correction for presentation accelerated amortization f a  Czech rcmumnts (note 7) 
E) comnion for accounting capitalisation o f  devclopmemt cosb relating in Czech Oroup (note 7) 
Balance as per I January (adjusted) 
Acquisitionslconmbutions 
Sham in mu11 
Translation 
Decrease provision (receivable from) subsidiary 
B a l ~ c c  as per 3 I December 

Because of the nemtive vilw of tlic investment in American RCSI~U~UIIS s.r.0.: 

4a.m 

4a.W 
376 

~ ~ a a  

1.430 
160 

SAfO 

F9.276 

19.276 
19.990 
7 . m  

I 
I 

(13.01 If 
(W 

I ( I¶ .  I S )  
I 

101 
3 

- 
-the loan granted 10 American Restaurants s.r.0. (see note 2) with unpaid interests of 8 210 TUSD has been wiriften off to nil 
- the additional provision of I 172 TUSD has been mognised 

Movements in the provision (xl.000) have been as follows: 
Balance as per I January 
a) correction for accounting kcatmcnt for lease arrangement (Note 7) 
b) correction for presentation accelerated amortization for Czech restaurants (note 7) 
c) correction for accounting capitalisation of dcvelopmcmt cos@ relating in Cxch Group (note 7) 
Balance BS per 1 January (adjusted) 
Shue in result 
Loans to related puty 
lntcrut on loans IO related puties 
Payment interest in 2006 
Currency exchange rate differences 
Translation 
Decrease pmvision subsidiw 
Balance LI per 3 I December 

(3.085) 
(168) 
(376) 
233 

(3.396) 
2.619 

303 

1.215 
(1.619) 

(294) 

(19.011) 
(144) 

(13 155) 
201 

6 828 
158 

3 
2 568 

( I .  172) ( 3  396) 

2 The loan granted to American Restaurants s.r.0. with unpaid inlcresrr of 8 210 TUSD his been nerted with the provision made 
for the negative net quity value of American Restaurants 6.r.o. (note I). 
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To the $harerholdd.errs of 
A m R M  H.oldtngs N.V. 

Auditors' report 

Ptlc~terhowecoopm 
Accountanta N.V. 
Fasdnatlo Boirlavard 350 
3065 W6 Ao#erclam 
P.0. Box 8800 
3609 AV Rottefdam 
The Netherlands 
Telephone +31 (10) 407 55 00 
Facsimile +31 (10) 458 43 33 
www.pw.comlnl 

Report on the financial staterbents 

We have audited the accompahing financial statements 2006 of AmRest Holdings W.V., 
Rotterdam as set on pages 
financial statements and the 
$tatamsnta mprlse the eo 
stabmmt, &abment of ch 
mW, and a summary of sign 
WrngMngr financial s t m r r t s  
2006, the company income sti&mnt for the year then ended and the notes. 

112. The financial statements consist of the consolidated 
financial tstatements. The consolidated financial 
balance sheet as at 31 December 2006, income 

equity and m I  flow statement for the year then 
des and other explanatory note& The 
y balance sheet as att 31 December 

Mmjgement's respons iliiy 
Management is responsible for e preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in occorda 
the Eurapean Union an 
preparation of the ann 
Civil Cock. This respo 
control mlesnt to the pre 
free from material mis 
appropwe accounting polici 
the drcumrtanoes. 

atioml Fhandal Reporting Standards as adopted by 
of Book 2 of thr Netherlands Civil Code, and for the 

Q of bok  2 of the Nethsrlands 
enting and maintaining internal 

tl 

n and fair presentation of the financial statements that are 
d or error, selecting and applying 
ng estimates that am masonable in 

I 

Auditors' respmsibility 
on the financial statements based on our udit. 

ma with Dutch taw. This law requlm that we GO 4 ply 
our audit to obtain reamawe assudnce 
$f9c1113 mlsstabement. 

We conducted our au 
with eth'rcal requiremn 
whether the financial state 

An audit involves petformi u r n  to obtain dludit evidence about the amounts ,and 
The pr6cechJm selecteU depend on the audhr's 
t b  rhke d materlal misstatement of the finankiarl 

I114 



itor considers internal control relevant to tttS 
on Olf the findmdal statements in order to design 

CEtcxlrrSstarrces, buf not forthe purpose d 
mess of the entity's internal control. An audit also 

entity's prepamtiin and fair p 

expresging an opinion on 
of accoUnting policies used and the 
made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation ofthe fin 

We believe that the audit evide#ce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit oppion. 

I 

Opinion with respect to he cansolklsted financial statements 
In our opinion, the 
financial pOeitian 
its cash Row for 
Standards ua 
Netherlands Civil Code. 

statement8 give a true and fair view of the 
as at 31 Deccsmber 2008, and of its result and 

with lntematlonal Financial Reporting 
Part 9 of Book 2 of the 

Opinion with mpect to ?e company financial statements 
In our opinion, the company fin ncial statemmts give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of AmRwt Hoklingr; N. . as at 31 Demnbgr 2006, and of its result for the year 
then ended in accordance with k art 9 of Book 2 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Report on other legal and rqelatary requirements 
I 

Pursuant to the m a l  
we report, to the 

2983 sub 5 part e of the Netherlands Civil Oode, 
that the annual report is consistent with tihe 

financial 4 of the Netherlands Civil Code. 

Rotterdam, 8 May 2007 

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accouhtants N.V. 

N.W. Over de Vest RA 
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